DIRECTORS REPORT

CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED

To the members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their second Annual Report and audited financial

statement of your Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY®

The financial summary of the Company, for the period under review are as follows;
(amount in Rs. thousands)

SI No. Particulars Audited Standalone Audited Consolidated
* Period * Period
Year Ended Ended Year Ended Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i Income
Revenue from 12,826 13,301 26,394,400 11,310,200
{a) | Operations
262800 148,300
{b) | Other Income - -
Total income 12,826 13,301 26657200 11,458,500
Expenses
Cost of Materials - - 19778400 1,233,700
{(a) | consumed
Purchase of stock 12,794 13,271 12,800 13,300
(b) | intrade
Changes in - - {(344,800) {2,541,800)
inventories of
finished goods,
work-in-progress
I (c) | and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits - - 1,170,000 557,100
(d} | expense
(e} | Finance Costs 658,411 354,065 3,191,800 1,476,100
Depreciation and - - 2,132,700 1,260,300
amortization
{f) | expense
{(g) | Other expenses 13,177 6,679 6252300 2,342,700
Total Expenses 684,382 374,015 32193200 14,341,400
il Loss before tax and {671,556) (360,714) {5536000) (2,882,900)
exceptional items (i-11)
v Exceptional Items - 270,000
v Loss before tax (1lI-IV) (671,556) (360,714) (5536000) (3,152,900)




Sl No.

Particulars

Audited Standalone

Audited Consolidated

Year Ended

* Period
Ended

Year Ended

* Period
Ended

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

Vi

Tax expense:

Current tax

Adjustment of tax
relating to earlier
periods

Deferred tax

(46,222)

(25,045)

{46,200)

(25,045)

MAT Credit
Entitlement
written back

Vit

Loss for the period (V-

V1)

(625,334)

(335,669)

(5,489,800)

(3,127,855)

Vit

Other Comprehensive
Income

{i) Items that will

not be reclassified
to profit or loss in
susequent periods

Re-measurement
gains on defined
benefit plans

(34,100)

2,900

(b) Equity
instruments
through other
comprehensive
income

(2,300)

300

ii) Income tax
relating to items
that will not be
classified to profit
or loss

(i) ltems that will

not be reclassified
to profit or loss in
susequent periods

{a) Exchange
differences in
translating the
financial
statements of
foreign operations

(256,900)

167,500

ii) Income tax
relating to items
that will be




SiNo.

Particulars

Audited Standalone

Audited Consolidated

Year Ended

* Period
Ended

Year Ended

* Period
Ended

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

classified to profit
or loss

Total other
comprehensive income

(293,300)

170,700

Total Comprehensive
Loss (VII+VII)

(625,334)

(335,669)

(5,783,100)

(2,957,155)

Loss for the period
attributable to:

Owners of the
Company

{2,936,700)

(1,679,900)

Non-controlling
interests

(2,553,100)

(1,448,000)

Other comprehensive
income for the period
attributable to:

Owners of the
Company

{(141,100)

82,200

Non-controlling
interests

(152,200)

88,500

Total comprehensive
loss for the period
attributable

to:

Owners of the
Company

{3,077,800)

{160)

Non-controlling
interests

(2,705,300)

{136)

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
{not annualized)

(a) | Basic

(62.53)

(61.89)

(293.68)

(309.76)

{b) | Diluted

(62.53)

(61.89)

(293.68)

(309.76)

@ The figures are not comparable. Current financial year of the Company ended on 31%
March, 2020 covering a period of 12 months from 1% April, 2019 to 31° March, 2020 and
previous financial year covered a period more than 13 months from 27" February 2018 to
31 March 2019.




2.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, on standalone basis the Company’s revenue from operations
was Rs. 12826 thousand as against Rs. 13,301 thousand in the previous period. The
Company’s loss before exceptional items and tax was Rs. 671,556 thousand in the financial
year ended 31* March, 2020 as opposed to Rs. 360,714 thousand in the previous period. The
Net loss after tax was Rs. 625,334 thousands as opposed to Rs. 335,669 thousand for
previous period.

During the year under review, on consolidated basis the group’s revenue from operations
was Rs. 26,394,400 thousand as against Rs. 11,310,200 thousand in the previous period. The
group’s loss before exceptional items and tax was Rs. 5,536,000thousand for the year ended
31° March, 2020 as opposed to a loss of Rs. 2,882,900 thousand in the previous period. The
net loss after tax was Rs. 5,489,800thousands as opposed to a loss of Rs. 3,127,855 thousand
for previous period.

The performance and financial position of the subsidiary companies and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF
THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

In view of the losses incurred by the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company has
not recommended any dividend for the period under review. As the Company has incurred
losses during the year, no amount has been transferred to Reserves.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As on 31 March, 2020, the Company has one direct subsidiary namely Monnet Ispat and
Energy Limited) (MIEL) and 4 step down subsidiaries. There has been no change in the nature
of business during the period under review of the Company or its subsidiaries.

MIEL is engaged in the business of manufacturing and marketing of Sponge Iron, Steel and
Ferro Alloys. It has two manufacturing facilities namely, at Raipur and Raigarh, in state of
Chhattisgarh.



During the financial year under review, MIEL had taken shut down of the steel manufacturing
operations, other than Pellet Plant and DRI Plant, at its Raigarh, Chhattisgarh plant, with
effect from 21 June 2019, for necessary modifications and general maintenance. The
integrated steel operations at the Raigarh Plant of the Company were re-started with effect
from 2™ March, 2020.

During the financial year under review, in view of 21 days’ nationwide lockdown advisory
announced by the Government of India and other authorities to contain the spread of Corona
Virus disease (COVID-19), MIEL temporarily suspended all the manufacturing operations of its
plants situated at Raipur and Raigarh both located in the State of Chhattisgarh with effect
from 25" March 2020.

MIEL restarted the integrated steel manufacturing operations at the Raigarh plant of the
Company with effect from 02" May 2020 and the manufacturing operations at Raipur plant
were restarted with effect from 15" May 2020.

A gist of financial performance of subsidiary companies, are provided in Form AOC-1 and
forms part of this report as Annexure 1. The separate audited financial statements of these
subsidiary Companies are available on the website of the Company viz
hitps://www.isw.in/groups/creixent-special-steels-limited#.

The annual financial statement of the subsidiaries companies are open for inspection by any
Shareholder or Debenture Trustee at the Company's Registered Office situated at QR No. 50-
51, Park Avenue Colony, Jindal Road, Dhimrapur, Raigarh, Chhattisgarh-496001 and the
Company will make available these documents and the related detailed information upon
request by any Shareholder of the Company or any Shareholder of its subsidiaries who may
be interested in obtaining the same.

The consolidated financial statements and financial statements of subsidiaries companies for
the year under review is prepared in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Ind AS and the Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015)
which forms part of the Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on 31** March 2020, the authorised share capital of the Company was Rs. 4,15,00,00,000/-
{Rupees four hundred and fifteen crores only} divided into 1,50,00,000 (One crore and fifty
facs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each {Rupees ten only) and 40,00,00,000 (Forty crores)
preference shares of Rs. 10/- {(Rupees ten only) each.

As on 31% March 2020, the paid up capital of the Company was Rs. 380,26,96,100/- (Rupees
three hundred and eighty crores twenty-six lacs ninety-six thousand and hundred only)



10.

consisting of 100,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 37,02,69,610 Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

There was no change in share capital of the Company during the financial year under review.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

As on 31**March 2020 the Company has 1,863 Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD)
of Rs. 10,00,000 each. The said NCD's are listed on BSE Limited. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
is the Debenture Trustee.

CREDIT RATING:

During the financial year, the Company’s NCD has been re-affirmed with the rating of BWR
BBB- from Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited. Instruments with this rating are
considered to have moderate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial
obligations. Such instruments carry moderate risk.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted or renewed any fixed deposits during the period under
review. It has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the provisions
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. Therefore, it is not
required to furnish information in respect of outstanding deposits under Non-banking, Non-
financial Companies {Reserve Bank} Directions, 1966 and Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All Related Party Transactions (RPT) that were entered into by the Company during the
period under review were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.
The disclosures of such material contracts or arrangements or transactions is made in Form
AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and form part of this report as
Annexure 2.

The information in respect of all related party disclosure as required under regulation 56(f) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2015
read with para A of schedule V, is contained in the Note No. 17 of the standalone financial
statements of the Company.

Prior omnibus approvals are obtained for related party transactions that are of repetitive
nature and / or entered in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s length, in
compliance with applicable provisions. The statement giving details of all Related Party
Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee / the Board for review and approval on
a periodical basis.
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12.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

During the year, there are no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts/
Tribunals that could impact the going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KIVIP)

Directors

As on 31° March 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of the following
Directors;

Sr. No. | Name of Director Category

1. Mr. Kalpesh Kikani Non-Executive Director
(DIN: 03534772)

2. Mr. Nikhil Gahrotra Non-Executive Director
(DIN:021.77756)

3. Mr. Seshagiri Rao M.V.S. Non-Executive Director
(DIN : 00029136)

4. Mr. Chirag Bhansali ) Independent Director
(DIN: 07395877)

5. Mrs. Anuradha Bajpai independent Director
(DIN: 07128141)

During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of the Board of
Directors.

in accordance with the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 and Articles of
association of the Company Mr. Nikhil Gahrotra, Director, retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-
appointment.

Brief profile, nature of expertise and directorship details of Mr. Nikhil Gahrotra is provided to
the members in the note accompanying the notice convening the 2™ Annual General
Meeting.

The Board recommends his appointment for the approval of the members at the ensuing 2™
Annual General Meeting.

There were no changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year
under review.
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14,

15.

16.

BOARD PERORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has formulated
Board Evaluation Policy for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its
Committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

During the period under review, the performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried
out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Board carried out an annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the Independent
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of the Committees of the
Board.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the period Four (4) Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between these Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

During the period under review the Company was in compliance with Secretarial Standards
i.e. 55 1 and SS- 2 relating to “Mestings of Board of Directors” and “General Meetings”

respectively.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In Compliance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 the [ndependent Directors
held a Meeting on March 16, 2020, and they, inter alia:

a} the performance of non-independent directors based on responses by directors to a
questionnaire for self-evaluation and the board process.

b) the frequency and duration of the board and committee meetings and the
timeliness and quality of information made available to the directors that would
facilitate proper discharge of the responsibilities by the Board and felt that, the
same was satisfactory.

The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction with overall functioning and
implementations of their suggestions.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company has duly constituted the Committees as required under the Companies Act,
2013 read with applicable Rules made thereunder. At present following are the Committees
of the Board;
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18.

i} Audit Committee

In accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board constituted Audit
Committee, with effect from 24% January, 2019, as detailed below:

a} Mr. Chirag Bhansali - Non-Executive Independent Director - Chairman
b) WMrs. Anuradha Bajpai - Non-Executive Independent Director - Member
¢} Mr. Nikhil Gahrotra - Non-Executive Director - Member

The terms of reference of the Committee are as per Section 177 of the Companies Act
2013 All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board during
the year under review.

During the year under review there was no change in composition of Audit Committee.

ii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

In accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board constituted

Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee, with effect from 24" January, 2018, as detailed
below:

a) Mr. Seshagiri Rao M.V.S. - Non-Executive Director —Chairman

b} Mr. Chirag Bhansali - Non-Executive Independent Director - Member
¢) Mrs. Anuradha Bajpai - Non-Executive Independent Director - Member
d} Mr. Nikhil Gahrotra — Non-Executive Director — Member

During the year under review there was no change in composition of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

During the year, pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors
approved Board Evaluation Policy and the same were also noted by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. This policy consists evaluation process of Board Member Self
Evaluation and Overall Board & Committee Evaluation.

The Board Evaluation Policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, is also hosted on the
website of the Company viz:- hitps://www.isw.in/groups/creixent-special-steels-limitedi.

VIGIL MECHANISM Cum WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has framed Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism, to deal with instances of
fraud and mismanagement, if any. The same has also hosted on the website of the Company
viz: https://www.jsw.in/groups/creixent-special-steels-limited#.



19. AUDITORS

a) Statutory Auditor

At the 1% Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27™ December 2019,
members of the Company approved the appointment of M/s, Deloitte Haskins & Sells
LLP, Chartered Accountant, Mumbai, (Registration Number 117366W/W-100018) as the
statutory auditor for a period of 5 years with effect from the conclusion of the 1°' Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 6™ Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors have audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31% March 2020 and no fraud has been reported
by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring disclosure in
the Board’s Report. The Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer requiring explanation or comments from the Board under Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

b} Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board, at its
meeting held on 22" May, 2019 has appointed M/s S. Srinivasan & Co., a Company
Secretaries Firm to conduct a secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year
2019-20. The Report of the Secretarial Audit carried out for the financial year 2019-20 is
annexed herewith as Annexure -3.

The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer requiring explanation or comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board, at its meeting held on 18" May 2020 has re-appointed M/s S. Srinivasan &
Co., a Company Secretaries Firm Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor,
for conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for financial year 2020-21.

20. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

In accordance with Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of
the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014, as amended, the information on conservation of
energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are annexed as
Annexure - 4 hereto and forms an integral part of this Report.



21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF

22,

23.

24.

25,

26.

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There was no loan advanced, guarantees given or security provided by the Company under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the Period under review. Particulars of
investments made are provided in the financial statement {Please refer to Note no. 2 to the
standalone financial statement).

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details of the employees as required under
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 5{1} of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014, as amended, are
annexed to this report as Annexure -5.

There are no employees drawing remuneration of Rupees One Crore and Two Lakhs or more,
or posted for part of the year and in receipt of Rupees Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand or
more a month under the Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“said rules”).

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendment thereto, the
extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT — 9 is annexed as Annexure - 6 and hosted on
the website of the Company and web link of the same is https://www.jsw.in/groups/creixent-
special-steels-limited#.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The company has Risk Management Policy to ensure sustainable growth & sound corporate
governance by having an identified process of risk identification and management. Audit
Committee of directors monitors Risk Management framework.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial control with reference to the size and
nature of its business.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
{PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013,

The Company has less than ten employees therefore the Constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee as required under The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal} Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company. However,



the Company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment during the
period under review.

27. DIRECTORS ‘RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to section 134 (5} of the Act your Directors state that;

(a)

(b)

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
loss of the company for that period;

the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

the directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively.

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

28. OTHER DISCLOSURES / REPORTING

29.

Your Directors state that during the period under review, no disclosure or reporting is
required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions or provisions
applicable pertaining to below items:

a)
b)

Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme save and except ESOPs referred to in this Report.

The provisions of Section 135 with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility.
Maintenance of cost records/cost audit as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS

The half-yearly Financial Results of the Company are submitted to the Stock Exchanges in
accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and are published in a leading English daily newspaper. The half-yearly results, are also
posted on the Company’s website, https://www.jsw.in.



30. DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

The Company has issued Debentures on a private placement basis and the same is listed on
the BSE Limited (“BSE”). Pursuant to Regulation 53(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Details of
Debenture Trustees, are as under:

Name Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Address No 604, Windsor, Off, CST Road, Kolivery Village,
Vidya Nagari, Kalina, Santacruz East, Mumbai,
Maharashtra 400098

Contact Details 022-49220555

Email ID umesh.salvi@ctltrustee.com

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors wish to place on record their gratitude to the authorities, banks, business
associates, Debenture holders and Shareholders for their unstinted support, assistance and
co-operation. The Directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels
for their hard work, dedication and commitment.

By order of the Board
For Creixent Special Steels Limited

—~
e _ /\
Ay
Seshagiri Rao M.V.S. Nikhil Gahrotra
Director Director
(DIN 00029136} {DIN: 01277756)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18t May 2020.
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No. 5, 5" floor,

Tardeo, AC Market Building CHS Ltd.,

Tardeo Road, Tardeo, Mumbai — 400 034
S. Swirivasan & Co., Tel no.: 022-49712661/ 022-23517505

Company Secretaries E-mail: mumbaissandco@yahoo.com

FORM NO. MR- 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
QR No. 50-51, Park Avenue Colony,

Jindal Road, Dhimrapur, Raigarh,
Chhattisgarh - 496 001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED bearing
CIN: U27209CT2018PLC008397 (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

Due to unprecedented lockdown imposed in the country caused by COVID-19 at a crucial time
when the audit was underway limiting the availability of physical access to the records of the
Company, and which lockdown continues even on the date of signing this report, we have
examined in the best possible manner, through the virtual platform, the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year
ended on 31% March, 2020, according to the provisions of:

i. ~ The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;




ii.

iil.

iv.

vi.

This forms part of our Secretarial Audit Report of CSSL dated 16-05-2020

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;
The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings, wherever applicable;

The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) as may be appropriately applicable
for the period under review: ‘

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the SEBI Act are not
applicable to the Company for the period under review:

a. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulation, 2014;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008,

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)

Regulations, 2018,
SA
QB4
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vii,  All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the
Company, a list of which hafs been provided by the management. The examination and
reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems and
processes are in place to moditor and ensure compliance with those laws.

We have also examined compliance iwith the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards:

The Secretarial Standards namely,% SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India have })een generally complied with by the Company during the
financial year under review.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the aforesaid provisions of the
acts, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent where such
records have been examined by us.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Coxf'npany is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors during the year under review.

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notcs on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through in the Board Meetings and that of its Committee and there
were no dissenting members’ view in any of the meetings.

We further report that:

Based on the information provided {ind the representation made by the Company and also on
the review of the compliance repox%s of Company Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer/ Chief
Executive Officer taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion
there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to momtor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax
laws and maintenance of financial reéords and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this
Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other
designated professionals.

Page 3 of
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We further report that, during the audit period, there are no specific events / actions
occurred which had any major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc.

For 8. Swncvasan & (o.
Company Secretaries

S. Srinivasan
Place: Chennai Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 16.05.2020 FCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748

UIN: S1984TN002200
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Annexure A

The Members,

CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
QR No. 50-51, Park Avenue Colony,

Jindal Road, Dhimrapur, Raigarh,
Chhattisgarh - 496 001.

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management represcntation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is partially limited to virtual examination based on inputs
provided by the management in soft copies. Any material deviation or non-compliance
which may have occurred during the year under review and which may come to light
later on, on the examination of the physical records can be addressed, if appropriate and
found necessary, in the next Secretarial Audit Report, which report may be construed as
an addendum to this report to that extent.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For 8. Srittuasan & (o..
Company Secretaries

S. Srinivasan
racticing Company Secretary

Place: Chennai FCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748

Date:

16.05.2020 UIN: S1984TN002200




Annexure -2

{Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

{Accoun

ts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms-length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

Not applicable, all contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties are at arm’s
length basis.

2} Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18" May 2020.

a) | Namef(s) of the related party and JSW Steel Limited,
nature of relationship
The investing party in respect of which
the reporting enterprise is a joint venture
b) | Nature of Reimbursement of expenses
contracts/arrangements/transactions
C) | Duration of the 15 April 2019 to 31% March 2020
; contracts/arrangements/transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or Reimbursement of expenses
arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any Rs. 41.35 lacs
e) | Date{s) of approval by the Board, if 22" May, 2019
any:
f} | Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil
By order of the Board
For Creixent Special Steels Limited
~ )
Seshagiri Rao M.V.S. Nikhil Gahrotra

Director Director
(DIN 00029136) {DIN: 01277756)



PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO AS REQUIRED UNDER COMPANIES {ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Alternative source of energy: Not Applicable

Capital investment oh energy conservation equipment’s-. Not Applicable

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts are being made in technology absorption

Not Applicable

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts

Not Applicable

Information relating to imported Technology

of the financial year)
a} the details of technology imported;
b) the year of import;

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorp
not taken place, and the reasons thereof;

(during the last three years reckoned from the beginning

¢} whether the technology been fully absorbed;

tion has

Not Applicable

Expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

Not Applicable

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows and the Foreign Exchange outgo in terms
of actual outflows, during financial year ended 31 March 2020 are as follow :-

{Rs. in thousand)

Total Foreign Exchange used and 2019-20 2018-19
earned

- Used Nil Nil
- Earned Nil Nil

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18" May 2020.

e

Seshagiri Rao M.V.S.

Director
(DIN 00029136)

By order of the Board
For Creixent Special Steels Limited

Nikhil Gahrotra
Director
(DIN: 01277756)



Annexure -5

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details
in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5({1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014:

the
each

the median
‘remuneration
for the financial year:

The ratio of
remuneration  of
director to
employees

Not Applicable.

Non-Executive Non-independent Directors neither received any
remuneration from the Company nor were paid any sitting fees for
attending the meetings.

Independent Directors were not paid any remuneration except the sitting
fees for attending meeting of Board and Committees.

the percentage increase in

remuneration of  each
director, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive

Officer, Company Secretary
or Manager, if any, in the
financial year:

Name Designation Percentage increase in
remuneration
Raj Kumar Sureka Chief Executive Nil
Officer
Keshav Anand Chief Financial Nil
Officer
Shyam Dikkatwar Company Secretary Nil
Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors neither received any

remuneration from the Company nor were paid any sitting fees for
attending the meetings.

Independent Directors were not paid any remuneration except the
sitting fees for attending meeting of Board and Committees.

The percentage increase in

the median remuneration

of employees in the
financial year:

Not Applicable, as the Company has no employees on the payroll of the
Company.

The Number of permanent
Employees on the rolls of
the Company:

Nil

Average percentile increase

already made in the
salaries of employees other
than the managerial
personnel in the last
financial year and its
comparison with the

Not Applicable, as the Coﬂ‘mpany has no employees on the payroll of the ‘
Company.




percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration
and justification thereof

and exceptional
circumstances for increase
in the managerial

remuneration, if any:

Affirmation that  the
remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the
Company:

it is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the policy for
Remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Employees.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18" May, 2020.

By order of the Board
For Creixent Special Steels Limited

L2
Seshagiri Rao M.V.S. Nikhil Gahrotra

Director Director
{DIN 00029136) (DIN: 01277756)
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V. INDEBTEDNESS -

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment
(in Rupees thousand)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year (01.04.2019)
i) Principal Amount - 4,968,094 4,968,094
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii} Interest accrued but not due 352 352
Total (i+ii+iii) - 4,968,446 4,968,446
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
e Addition 8,000 8,000
« Reduction - -
e Exchange Difference
Net Change - 8,000 8,000
indebtedness at the
end of the financial year (31%
March, 2020)
i} Principal Amount - 4,976,694 4,976,694
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iii}) Interest accrued but not due - 988 988
Total (i+ii+iii) - 4,977,682 4,977,682




Vi,

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time Director and/or Manager:

{Amount in Rs.)

Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the
Director

Total

1.| Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,1961

{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Act, 1961

{c} Profitsin lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax

2.| Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

4. | Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

5. Others, please specify (Exit compensation)

Total

Ceiling as per the Act

NIL

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount
(inRs.)

# Independent Directors

Anuradha Bajpai

Chirag Bhansali

Fee for attending board &
committee meetings
(paid/Payable)

100000

100000

200000

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

100000

100000

200000

Other Non-Executive Directors

*Seshagiri Rao
M.V.S.

*Nikhil Gahrotra

*Kalpesh
Kikani

Fee for attending board &
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)={1+2)

100000

100000

200000

Total Managerial
Remuneration{A+B)

Nil

200000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

As per the Companies Act, 2013

*Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors neither received any remuneration from
were paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings.

the Company nor




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD: -

Particulars of Remuneration | Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
" Raj Kumar A Keshav Anand | # Shyam Dikkatwar Total
Gross salary Sureka Chief Financial Company (in Rs.)
Chief Executive Officer Secretary
Officer
(a) Salary as per provisions 2,000,000 2,000,000 1135000 5,135,000
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 )
{c} Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income- - -
tax Act, 1961
Stock Option - - -
Sweat Equity - -
Commission
- as % of profit - - -
- others, specify...
Others
-Provident Fund ) i i
Total 2,000,000 2,000,000 1135000 5,135,000

~ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are getting remuneration / salary from their employer
i.e JSW Steel Limited. Your Company has paid the aggregate amount of Rs. 40,00,000 to the
promoter, i.e. JSW Steel Limited as secondment charges as they are not the employees of the

Company.

*  Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is getting remuneration / salary from their employer i.e
Subsidiary Company. Your Company has paid the aggregate amount of Rs. 11,35,000 to the
subsidiary, i.e. Monnet Ispat and Energy Limited as secondment charges as the KMP is not the

employee of the Company.

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18" May 2020

By order of the Board

For Creixent Special Steels Limited

Seshagiri Rao 'M/V/S’
Director
(DIN 00029136)

Nikhm

Director
(DIN; 01277756)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Creixent Special Steels Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Creixent Special
Steels Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
tn conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Hepd, Office. indiabulls 1ihanee Contra, Tower 3, 257 327 Floor. Sendpatl Bapat Marg, Elptenstore itead fWest, Mumbal G0 01 3, Maharaskrs, India
(LLI" Idebification No AAB 47 37)
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

¢ The Company‘s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

« Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
infermation is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

+ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) pfanning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements,
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to ocutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A", Qur report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financiatl controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinien and to the best of our informaticn and accerding to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (1EPF} by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

(Membership No. 102042}
Place: Mumbai (UDIN No. : 20102042AAAAAVA4547)
Date: 18.05.2020
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Creixent Special
Steels Limited (*the Company”) as of 31 March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internat financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial contrels over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No, 117366W/W-100018)

gsh Sharpad)

rtner

{(Membership No."102042)

Place:Mumbai (UDIN No, : 20102042AAAAAV4547)
Date:18.05.2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment and hence reporting
under paragraph 3(i} of the Order is not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under paragraph 3(ii)
of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) The Company has not made any investments, granted any loans and provided
guarantees or securities during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3{iv)
of the Order is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. The Company does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at 31 March, 2020 and accordingly, the provisions of sections 73 and 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(vi} Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/ activities, reporting under
paragraph 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable,

{vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. As informed to us the provisions
of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Excise Duty, Customs Duty, Sales
Tax and Value Added Tax and Cess were not applicable to the Company during
the current year.

(b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods and
Service Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March, 2020 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax and Goods and Service Tax as on 31 March,
2020 on account of disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to debenture holders. The
Company has not taken any locans or borrowings from banks and financial
institutions.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year
for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has neither raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer/ further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor were such proceeds pending to be applied, during the current year.
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()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv}

(xvi)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration, in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3{xli}
of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its subsidiary companies or any persons connected with
them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

kesh Shatmay
“ Partner
(Membership No. 102042)

Place:Mumbai (UDIN No. : 20102042AAAAAV4547)
Date:18.05.2020



CREIXENT SPECIAL S5TEELS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Particutars

HNotes As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
1. ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
Financial assets
{i} Investments 2 5,664,225 5,664,225
Total non-current assets 5,664,225 5,664,225
(2} Current assets
(3} Financial assets
{i} Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,834 765
(b} Other current assets q 1,312 2,501
Total current assets 4,146 3,266
TOTAL ASSETS 5,668,371 5,667,491
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 5 100,000 100,000
(b} Other equity & (536,868) 88,466
Total equity {436,868) 188,466
{2) Non-current liabilities
{2} Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 7 4,976,604 4,968,694
[ii] Other financial liabilities 1 1,011,267 353,707
(b} Deferred tax liahilities 78,608 124,830
Total non-current liabilities 6,066,569 5,447,231
{3} Current liabllities
{a) Financtal liabilities
(i) Trade payables ]
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
{B tm.al outstanding of creditors other than micro 10,563 3,470
enterprises and small enterprises
{ii} Other financial liabilities 10 26,534 25,857
[b) Other current liabilities 11 1,573 2427
Total current liahbilities 38,670 31,794
Total llabilities 6,105,239 5,479,025
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,668,371 5,667,491

Rs. in thousands

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS 8 SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

\d e

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Keshav Anand
Chief Financial Officer

#

Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Secretary
ICS1 M No, ACS: 33003

Seshagiri Rao M.V.S.
Director

DIN: 00029136

NI ahrotra
Director
DIN: 01277756



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Rs. in thousands, except per share data and as stated otherwise
For the year ended 31 For the period from 27

Particulars Notes March 2020 February 2018 to 31
March 2019
I. Revenue
Revenue from operations 12 12,826 13,301

1. Expenses

Purchases of traded goods 12,794 13,271
Finance costs 13 658,411 354,065
Other expenses 14 13,177 6,679
Total expenses 684,382 374,015
. Loss before tax {I-11) {671,556) {360,714)
IV. Tax expense/ {credit}
Current tax 18 - -
Deferred tax (46,222) (25,045}
V. Loss for the year/ period (II-1v) {625,334} {335,669)
V1. Other comprehensive incomne - -
625,334
VII. Total comprehensive loss for the year/ period {V+VI) (625,334) 335,669}
VIll. Earnings per share {of Rs. 10/- each} 15
Basic {Rs.) (62.53} {61.89)
Diluted {Rs.) {62.53) {61.89}
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
{n terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Bpard of Directors
Chartered Accountants ~ —
A P
rd
ajkumar Sureka Seshagiri Rao M.V.5,
Chief Executive Officer Director
bih o DIN: 00029136
\.II (1] \\F’\"ﬂ 0.."/ ‘.
\ ‘L'r\.-' \‘ — -
\ =) .
Place: Mumbai Keshav Anand Nikhit"Gahrotra
Date: 18 May 2020 Chief Financial Cfficer Director
[\ DIN: 01277756
-—’L]’M:/
Shyarn Dikkatwar
Company Secretary

ICSI M Mo. ACS: 33003



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Rs. in thousands

Farticulars

For the year ended 31 For the period from
March 2020 27 February 2018 to
31 March 2019
Cash flow from operating activities :
Loss before tax {671,556} (360,714}
Adjustments for :
Interest expense 658,411 354,059
{13,145} (6,655}
Changes in working capital
Deacreasef (incraase] in other current assets 1,182 (2,501)
Incraase in trade payables 7,093 3,470
Increase In other financial liabilities - 25,545
{Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities (853) 2,427
Cash [used in}/ generated from operations (5,716) 22,286
Direct taxes paid - R
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A} {5,716} 22,286
Cash flow from investing activities
Investment in a subsidiary ({5,664,225)
Net cash used in investing activities {B) {5,664,225)
Cash flow from financing activities :
Expenses Incurred on increase in authorised share capital - {25,491}
Proceeds from borrowings £,000 5,568,195
interest paid {215) -
Proceeds from issue of aquity shares - 100,000
Net cash flow generated from financing activitias (C) 7,785 5,642,704
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+() 2,069 765
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/ period 765 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/ period 2,834 765

Note:

1. The statement of cash flows is prepared using the “indirect method” set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”,

2. Recongiliztion between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabllities arising from financing activitias,

Rs. in thousands

Particulars

Cash flows {net)
8,000

31-Mar-19
5,568,195

Particulars

Cash flows (net}

- Rs. in thousands
27-Feb-18

Borrowings (non-current)

Non-cash investing transactions

 5568,195

During the previous period, the Company has received the 225,934,607 equity shares and 340,487,893 Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares of Monnet Ispat & Energy Limlted [{MIEL}, against Company’s equity and preference share holding in Milloret Steel Limited {MSL],
pursuant to merger of MSL the then subsidiary of the Company with MIEL.

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

\
A
Kesh Sharm. *
Artner

e

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2020

Keshav Anand
Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Offjeer

../c.:‘

P

Dt

Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Secretary
1CS! M No. ACS: 33003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

—_—

Seshagiri Rao MLV.5,
Director
DIN: DD029136

Ni
Diractor
DIN: 01277756
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CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Rs. in thousands

Particulars As at 31 March 2020  As at 31 March 2019

{a) Equity share capital

Balance at the beginning of the year/ period 100,000 -

Issuance of shares upon incorporation - 200

Equity share capital issued during the year/ period = 99,800

Balance at the end of the year/ period 100,000 100,000

{b) Other equity Rs. in thousands
Equit

Particulars quity component of Retained earnings

financial instruments

Balance as at 27 February 2018 . =

Loss for the period {335,669)
Expenses incurred on increase in authorised share capital - {25,491)
Fair value difference on financial instruments issued to owners 599,502 -
Income tax relating to fair valuation difference on financial instruments {149,876) -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 449,626 (361,160)
Loss for the year - {625,334)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 449,626 {986,494)

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

|

yesly Shapnfa Seshagiri Rao M.V.S.
Director

DIN: 00029136

tner

Nl
Place: Mumbai Keshav Anand Ni
Date: 18 May 202¢ Chief Financial Officer Director
,\ DIN: 01277756
Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Secretary

ICSI M No. ACS: 33003



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1A. General Information

Creixent Special Steels Limited {“the Company”} is incorporated in India on 27 February 2018 under the Companies
Act, 2013 with its registered office located at QR No. 50-51, Park Avenue Colony, Jindal Road, Dhimrapur, Raigarh
- 496001, Chattisgarh.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of trading of iron and steet products,

1B. Significant Accounting policies

Amendments to Ind AS that are notified and adopted by the Company

a.

Ind AS 116, Leases: On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS
116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract i.e, the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve manths,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

As a practical expedient, it is permitted to not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing lease applying Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
standard permits two possible methods of transition:
i. Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
ii. Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the

remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either

as:

i. Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted

at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

ii. An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial
application.

There is no impact upon adoption of Ind AS 116.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Carporate
Affairs has natified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which is to be applied
while performing the determination of taxable profit {or loss}, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to
the Appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax
treatment, ar group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing
which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment
when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

There is no effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C in the Financial Statements.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

c. Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes — On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued
amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend
distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events,

There is no effect on adoption of amendment to Ind AS 12 in the Financial Statements.

d. Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement- On 30 March 2019, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for
plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

i. to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of
the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

ii. torecognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction
in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset
ceiling.

There is no impact of adoption of this amendment.
1C. Statement of compliance

Standalone Financial Statements has been prepared in accerdance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} prescribed under the section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

These standalone financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 18 May 2020.
1D. Basis of preparation and presentation

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below,
Histarical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

The directors of the Company has given careful consideration te the liquidity of the Company having regard
to its negative net-worth of Rs. 436,868 thousand and current liabilities exceeding current assets by Rs. 34,524
thousand, as at 31 March 2020. The Company plans to meet the said deficit for the forthcoming year by
receiving the continual unconditional financial support committed by a investing party in respect of which the
Company is a joint venture. Having regard to the above, the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Previous year's Standalone financial statements had been prepared for the period starting from 27 February
2018 i.e. the date of incorporation of the Company to 31 March 2019 and accordingly, the figures of current
year are not comparable with the corresponding figures of the preceding period.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except otherwise indicated.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1E. Significant Accounting Policies

l. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the econamic benefit will flow to the Company and
it can be measured reliably.

The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the
customer in terms of the contract at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
concessions, incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items as per the terms of the contract.

The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties or government such as
goods and service tax levied on sales.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Il, Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Wl. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax
expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.,

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based cn the taxable profit for the period as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements and the correspending tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 1o set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation autherity.

V. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

Cost of inventories include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition,

Cost of inventories are determined on weighted average method basis. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

V. Provisions and contingencias

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive), as a result of
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required
to settle such an obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
accurrence or non-occurrence of one ar mare uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity; or

b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or
ii} the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliahility.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occutrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting period.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Vi,

Vil

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is shown at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment in greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the
difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is camputed by dividing the profit/{loss) for the period by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue
to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the period as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income {net of any attributable taxes} relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share frem continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to he converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date.

VIll. Financial Instruments

A,

a)

b}

Financial assets and financial liahilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liahilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents
consist of unencumbered balances with banks.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methodif these
financia! assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

c) Financials assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or lass unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss

d) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

e} Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and
other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate

fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

f) Compound financial instruments

The components of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the

instrument’s maturity date.

The amount classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity,

net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

B. Impairment

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost
based on the Campany’s past history of recovery, credit worthiness of the counter party and existing

market conditions.

€. De-recognition of financial assets and financial liahilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expires or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the company’s Balance Sheet
when the ohligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1F.

1G.

D. Fair value of financial instruments
in determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and

assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods
used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and
dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value and such value
may actually not be realized at that amount.

The outbreak of Corona Virus pandemic globally and in India has caused significant impact on the economic
activity. In many countries including India, businesses have been force to limit their operations resulting in
economic slowdown.

The Company based on its assessments expects to recover the carrying value of the assets. In assessing the
recoverability of the Company’s assets, the Company has considered internal and external information upto
the date of approval of these standalone financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 1E above, the Company is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.



CREIXENT SPECIAL S5TEELS LIMATED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2. Non-current investments

Rs. In th d

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Investments in subsidiary [at cost)
Quoted:
225,934,607 equity shares |31 March 2019 ; 225,934,607 equity shares) of Rs. 10/- sach of Monnet [spat and Energy Limited 2,253,248 2,259,346
Unquoted:
340,487,893 preference shares {31 March 2019 ; 340,487,893 preference shares) of Rs. 10/- each of Monnet Ispat and Energy Limited 3,404,879 3,404,879

5,664,225 5,664,225
Quoted :
Aggregate book value 2,259,346 2,259,246
Apgregate market value 2,078,598 6,337,466
Unguoted :
Aggregate ook value 3,404,879 3,404,872

The Resalution Plan In relation to MIEL under the Insolvency Bankruptey Code, 2018, submitted by the Consortium of JSW Steel Limited and AION Investments Private |1 Limited, was
appraved by the National Company Law Tribunal on 24 July 2018, with modifications.

Pursuant to such approval, Milloret Steel Limited {MSL), the Company’s then subsidiary entity, was mergad with MIEL and in consideration, the Company received 225,934,607 equity
shares and 340,487,892 Compulsorily Convertible Praference Shares of MIEL, agalnst its equity and preference share holding in MSL,

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in th d
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Balances with banks - in current accounts 2,834 765
2,834 765
4, Other current assets
- Rs. n th d
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Indirect taxes balances/ recoverables 1,212 2,501
1,312 2,501

5. Equity share capltal
Rs. In thousands

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Ne. of shares Amount M. of sharas Amount
{a} Authorised:
Equity shares of the par value Rs, 10 each 14,980,000 149,800 14,980,000 149,800

{b) Issued and subscribed
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

{¢) Reconclliatlon of number of shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end

of the year/ period

At the beginning of the year/ petiod 10,000,000 100,000 .

Issuance of shares upon incorporation 20,000 200
Add: Issued during the year/ period - - 8,980,000 99,200
Outstanding at the end of the year/ perlod 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

{d} Rights, preferences and restrlctions attched to equity shares
The Company has single class of equity shares, Each holder of aquity shares iz entitled for one vote per share held, In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholdars are aligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in propartion to their shareholding.

[e] Shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the C ¥ are set out below:
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No. of Shares % of shares MNo. of Shares % of shares
ISW Steel Limited 4,800,000 48.00% 4,800,000 48.00%
AION Investrents Private |1 Limited 5,200,000 52.00% 5,200,000 52,008
6. Dther equity
Rs. in thousands
. As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Particulars
Retained earnings (986,494 (361,160)
Equity component of compound financial instruments 449,626 449,626

{536,568} 38,466

a) Retained eamings
Retained sarnings are the profits/ losses that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions to the shareholders,

b) Equity compenent of compound finandial instruments
The Company has Issued Redeemable Preference Shares {RPS) during the period ended 31 March 2019, The Company has computed the liability portion of RPS as the present value of the
contractual obligations associated with the instrument and the differance between the issue amount of the BPS and the liability so computad has been treated as the 'Fair valuation
difference on financial instuments issued to owners' and grouped under other equity.



CREIMENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

7. Borrowings
Rs. in th i
Partlculars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Nen-convertibsle debentures (unsecured) 1,863,000 1,863,000
Liability component of financial instritments {unsecured) 3,103,134 3,103,194
Loan from a related party [unsecured) [refer note 17 C} i 10,500 2,500
4,976,694 4,968,694

Nen-convertible debentures:

A 0.01% non-convertible debentures {NCDs) of Rs. 1,000,000 each aggregating to Rs. 1,863,000 the ds and are red ble on 28-08-2025 at a fixed premium of Rs. 52,000
thousands and a variable premium such that yield on the redemption principal and fixed premium is equal to the redemption YTM of 12% p.a.

Liability component of compound Tinancial instruments :
A 0.01% redeemable preference shares-1 [RP5-1] having face value of Rs. 10 aggregating to Rs, 1,719,692 thousands and are redeemable on 27-08-2038 at a fixed premium of Rs. 48,000
thousands and a variable premium such that yield on the redemption principal and fixed premium is equal to the redemption ¥TM of 12%p.a,
0. 0.01% redeemable preference shares-2 [RPS-2) having face value of Rs. 10 sggregating to Rs. 1,983,004 the ds and are red ble on 27-08-2038 at a variable premium such that
yield on the redemption principal is equal to the redemption YTM of 10% p.a.

Loan from i related party:
A Loan from a related party amounting to Rs. 2,500 thousands bearing an interest rate of MCLR plus 200 basis points and 1s repayable on 26-02-2023,
B. Loan from a related party amounting to Rs. 8,000 the ds bearing an in rate of MCLR plus 200 basis points and is repayable after three yaars from disbursement.

B. Other financlal liabilities [Mon-current)

Rs.in th d
particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures 381,854 133,045
Premium on redemption of preference shares 625,413 220,662
1,011,267 353,707
9. Trade payables
Rs. In th d
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 Ag at 31 March 2019
Creditors other than micro enterpises and small enterprises 10,563 3,470
10,563 3,470
Payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises are normally settled within 1 to 180 days.
Amount payable to micro enterprises and small enterprises Is Rs. Nil based on the information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors,
10, Other flnanchal liabllities [current)
Rs. In th d:
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Payable to a related party {refer note 17 {) 25,545 25,545
Interast accruad but not due on borrowings 988 352
26,533 25,897
11. Other current Nabilitles
Rs. in th d
particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Statutory liabilities 1,573 2,427
1,573 2427
12, Revenue from operations
Rs. In th d.
Particulars For the yearended  For the perlod from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to 31
March 2019
Sales of products
Sale of traded goods 12,826 13,301
12,826 13,301
Product wise turnover
Partlculars for the year ended  For the pedod from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to 31
March 2019
TMT Re-bars 12,826 13,301

Fotal 12,826 13,31




CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The Company has d and determined the fallowing categories for disaggregation of revenue in addition o that provided under segment disclosure:
Particulars For the year ended For the period from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to 31
March 2019
Revenue from contracts with customer - Sale of products 12,826 13,301
Other operating revenue - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 12,826 13,301
Within India 12,826 13,301
Outside India -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 12,826 13,301
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 12,826 13,301
Over 2 period of time - -
Total revenue from comtracts with customers 12,826 13,301
Performance obligation
The performance obllgation is satisfiad upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 60 days from delivery.
13. Finance costs
Rs. In th d
Particulars For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020 Fabruary 2018 to 31
March 2019
Interest on debentures 187 111
Interest on prefarence shares a7l 220
Premium cn redempticn of debentures 248,809 133,045
Premium on redemption of preference shares 408,752 220,662
Other borrowing cost 292 27
658,411 354,065
14, Other expenses
Rs. In thousands
Particulars For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to 31
March 2019
Rates and taxes - 2,500
Raimt of tion of gerial personnel 5,135 -
fudit fees
- As statutory audit fees 5,700 3,800
- As tax audit fees 100 -
- A5 limited review fees 300 -
- As out of pocket expenses 530 -
Legal and professional fees 1,022 175
iscellaneous expenses 320 204
13,177 £,679
15. Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended  For the perlod from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to 31
March 2019
Net loss for the year/ perled {A) Rs. In thousands {625,334) {335,669}
Equity shares at the beginning of the year/ period Nos 10,000,000 -
Equity shares issuad upon incorporation of the Company Hos. - 20,000
Equity shares issued durning the year/ period Mos. - 9,980,000
Equity shares at the end of tha year/ period Nos 10,000,000 10,000,000
Welghted e ber of aquity shares for the purpose of calculating baske Nos, 10,000,000 5423,216
and diluted earnings per share (B)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted {face value of Rs. 10/- each} (4/B) Rs. (62.53) {61.89)

16. Segrment Raporting

The Company is in the business of trading of steel products, primarily operating in India and regularly reviewed by Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of Company's

performance and resource allocation.
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CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

18. Taxation
India

a)

b}

<)

Companies are subject to income tax on a standalone basis. Each entity is assessed on tax on taxable
profits determined for each fiscal year beginning on 1 April and ending on 31 March. For each fiscal
year, the respective entities profit or loss is subject to the higher of the regular income tax payable or
the minimum alternate tax (“MAT").

Pursuant to the Taxation Law {Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 {‘Ordinance’) subsequently amended in
Finance Tax issued by Ministry of Law and Justice on 20 September 2019 which is effective 1 April, 2019
domestic companies have the option to pay corporate income tax at 22% plus applicable surcharge and
cess subject to certain conditions. The Company basis the impact assessment of Ordinance has decided
to continue with the existing tax structure. Accordingly, statutory income tax is charged at 25% on
income assessed under the Income Tax Act plus a surcharge and education cess. MAT is assessed on
book profits adjusted for certain items allowed under the income tax provisions. The rate of MAT for
the year ended 31 March 2020 is 21.34%. MAT paid in excess of regular income tax during a year can be
set off against regular income taxes within a period of fifteen years succeeding the fiscal year in which
MAT credit arises subject to the limits prescribed.

Income tax expense/(benefit)-
There is no current tax for the year ended 31 March 2020, and deferred tax benefit is Rs, 46,222
thousand (previous period — Rs.25,045 thousand}.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting loss before tax at the statutory income
tax rate to recognized income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended | For the period from 27
31 March 2020 february 2018 to 31
March 2019
Loss before tax (6,71,556) (3,60,714)
Enacted tax rate in India 27.82% 27.82%
Expected income tax benefit at statutory rate (1,86,827) ~ {100,351)
Deferred tax assets on losses not recognized 1,40,605 75,306
Total tax benefit ) (46,222) (25,045)

There are no income-tax related legal proceedings which are pending against the Company.

Deferred tax (assets) /liabilities-
Components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the standalone financial statements are as follows:
Rs. in thousands

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 | Recognised/ (reversed) As at 31 March 2020
through profit or loss/
other comprehensive
income
Equity component of 1,46,173 (6,362) 1,39,811
financial instruments
Premium accrued on (21,343) (39,860} (61,203)
liability component of
financial instruments |
Total 1,24,830 (46,222) 78,608




CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Rs. in thousands

Particulars As at 27 February Recognised/ (reversed) As at 31 March
2018 through profit or loss/ other | 2019
comprehensive income |

Equity component of - 1,46,173 1,46,173
financial instruments
Premium accrued on - (21,343) (21,343}
liability component of

_financial instruments
Total - 1,24,830 1,24,830 |

Expiry schedule of losses on which deferred taxes is not recognised as under :

_Expiry of losses AY 2027-28 AY 2028-29 Total
Business loss 6,377 13,437 19,814

19. Financial instruments — fair values and risk management

A, Capital risk management

The Company’s objective is to maintain a strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios and establish a capital
structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its operating activities repayment of principal and
interest on its borrowings and making strategic acquisitions. The principal source of funding of the
Company has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented
by funding from investing party and the capital markets. The Company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors its capital gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt
includes, interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in thousands

Particulars ) As at 31 March Asat31
2020 March 2019
Long term borrowings (including accrued premium payable on 5,987,961 5,322,401
redemption of debentures} |
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B (2,834) {765}
Net debt 5,985,127 5,321,636
| Total equity (436,868) 188,466
Gearing ratio " (13.70) 28.24




CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

B. Categories of financial instruments

Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented below:
Rs. in thousands

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
— - o Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
il value value
Financial assets (measured at amortised cost)
“Cash and cash equivalents 2,834 2,834 | 765 765
‘Total financial assets 2,834 2,834 765 765 |
Financial liabilities {measured at amortised
cost) B
' Non-current borrowings
- Non- convertible debentures {including 2,244,854 3,760,397 1,996,045 | 4,916,786
accrued premium payable on redemption
of debentures}
- Preference shares and loan (including 3,732,607 3,732,607 3,323,856 | 3,323,856
accrued premium payable on preference
shares at maturity) B
- Loan from a related party B 10,500 10,500 2,500 2,500
Trade pavyables 10,563 10,563 3,470 3,470
| Other current financial liabilities 26,534 26,534 B 25,897_ B 2_5,8_97_
Total financial liabilities 6,025,058 7,540,601 5,351,768 | 8,272,509

The following table summarises the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Rs. in thousands

Particulars Fair value

Level

Valuation techniques and key

input

Financial Iiabilit! {measured at amortised cost)

‘Non- current borrowings 3,760,397
- Non convertible
debentures

Discounted cash flow. Future
cash flows are discounted at a
rate that reflects market risks.

The fair value of the financial liability above had been determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing model based on discounted cash flow analysis, with the maost significant input being the discount

rate.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other financial liabilities are considered
to he the same as their carrying amounts, due to their short term nature.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Sensitivity analysis of Level 3:

Valuation Significant | Change | Sensitivity of the input to fair
technique | unobservable value
inputs
Non- current borrowings DCF Discounting | 0.50% | 0.50% Increase / (decrease} in the
- Non convetrtible Method rate 10.15% discount would decrease /
debentures {increase} the fair value by Rs.
24,200 thousands / {Rs. 86,500
- thousands})

C. Financial risk management

The risk management policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks,
setting acceptance risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks
and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to provide
reliable information to the management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial statements :
- Market risk

- Credit risk; and
- Liguidity risk

D. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in the market prices. The Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business
1o risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company seeks to minimize the effect

of the risk by using derivative financial Instruments to hedge exposure, as and when considered
necessary.

E. Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and risk of
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a policy of
only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as
a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Company’s credit risk arises principally from the cash and cash equivalents,

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and reviews it on ongoing
hasis.



CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

F. Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to
shortage of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and meeting
the requirements of financing. The Company manages liquidity risk by taking borrowings from the

investing party as and when required.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods and its financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date in which the Company can be
required to pay. The tables included both interest and principal cash flows.

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Rs. in thousands

Particulars <1 Year 1-5 Years > 5 Years Total
As at 31 March 2020 )

| Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 2,834 - - 2,834
Total 2,834 - - 2,834
Financial liabilities B
Non-current horrowings - 10,500 5,977,461 5,987,961
{including accrued premium
payable on redemption) |l
Trade payables 10,563 - - 10,563
Other current financial 26,534 - - 26,534
liabilities

| Premium payout liability 186 744 733,533 734,463
Total 37,283 11,244 6,710,994 6,759,521 [

Rs. in thousands

Particulars . <1 Year 1-S Years > 5 Years Total
As at 31 March 2019 o
Financial assets o
Cash and cash equivalents 765 - - 765
Total - 765 - - 765
Financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings - 2,500 5,319,901 | 5,322,401 '
(including accrued premium

_payable on redemption} ]
Trade payables 3470 - - 3470
Other current financial liabilities 25,897 B - - 25,897
Interest and premium payout 186 745 | 728,485 729,416
liability
Total 29,553 | 3,245 6,048,386 | 6,081,184




CREIXENT SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

G. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The following table provides a break-up of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

Rs. in thousands

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Carrying amount Carrying amount
Fixed rate borrowings ) 4,966,194 4,966,194'
Floating rate borrowiﬂgs 10,500 2,500
| Total borrowings 4,976,694 4,968,694

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest

rate internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’s loss before tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 would increase / decrease by Rs. 105
thousands (previous period — Rs. 25 thousand), respectively. This is mainly attributable to the company’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Fain

B

Seshagiri Rao M.V.S.
Director
DIN: 00029136

Nikhil Gahrotra

Director
DIN: 01277756

Rajkumar Suréka
Chief Execytive fficer

Jon

Ao

Keshav Anand
Chief Financial Officer

il

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2020

Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Secretary
ICSI M No. ACS: 33003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Creixent Special Steels Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Creixent Special
Steels Limited ("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) which includes the Group’s share of loss in its
associate and joint venture entities, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at 31 March 2020, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Loss), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
(‘Ind AS"), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and their consolidated loss, their
consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and their
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associate and joint venture entities in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consclidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-
paragraph (a) of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Heyo, Office naiabulls FInance Lentre, lower 3, 21" 327 Floor Senapaty Bapal Marg. Elphirstore Road (Westl, Mumbal 400 013, Mahataskeg, India
LL¥* idenification Mo AAE 8747)
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter
Recoverable value assessment of
Property, plant and equipment

The Group to revamp its manufacturing
facilities, temporarily shut-down some of its
plants at Raigarh location. In view of
operating losses under such stabilisation
phase, sluggish demand and pricing
pressures, the management has assessed
the recoverable value of property, plant and

equipment engaging an independent
external expert.
Replacement cost estimation involves

significant judgement and estimates.

[Refer note 3(II) to the consolidated
financial statements]

Auditor’s Response

Our procedures included but not limited

to:

- Evaluating the design and
implementation, and testing the
operating effectiveness of the relevant
controls  over  determination of
recoverable value of property, plant and
equipment

Assessing the accuracy and
completeness of the information shared
with the independent expert engaged by
the management

- Evaluating the reasonableness of the
valuation provided by the independent
expert by challenging the significant
assumptions used and estimates and
judgements made in deriving the
valuation with the help of internal fair
value specialist

Assessing the competence and
independence of the wvaluation expert
engaged by the Group for determining
the replacement cost of property, plant
and equipment

Verification of accounting implications,
if any, and appropriateness of
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

» The Parent’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon,
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e Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the
subsidiaries audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and,
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is traced
from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.

+ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard®.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive loss, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in equity of the Group including its associate and joint venture entities in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associate and joint venture entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and its associate and its joint venture entities and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint venture entities are
responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting untess the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associate and joint venture entities are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group and of its associate and joint venture entities.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group and its associate and joint venture entities to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the conselidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate and joint venture entities
to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associate and joint venture
entities to express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consclidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for ocur audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 5.04 crore as at 31 March, 2020, total revenues of Rs, Nil
and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 0.47 crore for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements have
not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of
subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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{b) We did not audit the financial statements of 5 subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs.32.34 crore as at 31 March, 2020, total revenues of Rs. Nil
and net cash inflows of Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include
the Group's share of net loss of Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March, 2020, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of 5 joint venture
entities, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial
statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint venture
entities, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management,
these financial statements are not material to the Group.

We have been informed by the Management that upon initiation of the Liquidation
proceedings in respect of an associate under the provisions of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, it has ceased to be an associate of the Group and
accordingly the financial statements of this entity have not been furnished to us.
However, in view of the last audited financial statements and other financial
information available, the Company has written off its investment in the aforesaid
entity and Management has represented to us that there is no continuing obligation
to bear further losses by the Company. Accordingly, in our opinion and according
to the information and representations given to us by the Management, non-receipt
of these financial statements will have no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and
the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, returns and the reports of the other
auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent as on 31 March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and
subsidiary companies, incorporated in India to whom internal financial controls
over financial reporting Is applicable. Qur report expresses an unmaodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over
financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group.

i} The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its
subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rakesh.8harma)

Partner

(Membership No. 102042)

Place: Mumbai {(UDIN No. : 20102042AAAAAWSE84)
Date: 18.05.2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as
of and for the year ended 31 March, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Creixent Special Steels Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion ¢n the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, based on our audit., We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financiai reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial ¢controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors of a subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, in
terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrels over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2020, based on the criteria
for internal financial control cver financial reporting established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates
to a subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based solely on the
corresponding report of the auditors of such company incorporated in India.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter,

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

kesh/Sharma)

Partner

(Membership No. 102042)

Place: Mumbai (UDIN No. : 20102042AAAAAWS884)
Date: 18.05.2020



Creixent Speclal Steels Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwlse stated)

Notes Asan As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
&, ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
a, Property, plant and equipment 3 3,235.99 3,384 92
. Capital work-in-progress 23421 178.73
c. Right of use assets a0 29.58
d. Other intangible assets 4 37.50 37.50
e Investrents in joint venture and associate 5 -
f. Financial assets
I, Investments 6 0.5 099
ii, Other financial assets 7 2435 18.58
€. Current tax assets {Net) E 225 2.13
h. Other non-current assets ] 21.35 £36
Toral non-current assets 3,586.98 3,629.21
2. Current assets
2. Inventories 10 857.49 658.51
b. Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 11 51.77 32,98
i, Cash and cash equivalents 1ta 3611 16555
iit. Bank Balance other than above 12h 136.23 48.12
iv, Derlvative assets 13 775 -
v. Loans 14 .36 9.72
vi. Other financial assets 15 1.45 9.45
¢. Other current assets 16 135.16 163.07
d. Assets classified as held for sale 36 38.47 331
Total current assets 1,258.7% 1,091.01
TOTAL ASSETS 4,845.77 4,720.22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a, Share capital 17 10.00 10.00
b. Dther equity 18 50.66 358.44
Equity attrlbutahle to equlty holders of the parent 60.66 368.44
MNon-controlling interasts 535.69 806,22
Total Equity 596.35 1,174.66
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current labilities
a. Financial liabifities
i, Borowings 19 2,749.20 2,540.97
ii. Lease liabilities 0 28.85 -
iil. Other financial liabilities 25 101.13 35.37
b. Provislons 21 464 323
¢. Deferred tax fiabilities {net) 22 20.96 25.58
Total non-current llabllities 2,904.78 2,605.15
2. Current Nabllities
a. Financial liabllithes
i. Borrowings 1% 367.63 15421
il. Trade payables 3
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; 135 3.36
- total cutstanding dues of craditors other than micro and 488,63 396.72
small enterprises
iih. Lease liabilities pi] 098 -
iv. Derivative llabilities 24 0.20 -
v. Other financial lfabilitias 5 448.85 355.09
b. Other current liabilities 26 32,87 30.72
¢. Provisions 21 0.84 .31
d. Liabilities classified a5 held for sale 36 329 z
Total current labllitles 1,344.64 940.41
Total Equity and liabllities 4,845.77 4,720.22
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial stat t
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Dirgetars
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP P
red Accountants {
\ Seshaghri Rao M.V.S,

Director

L DIN: 00028136
W \_0/‘\\-'/}
Keshav Anand Nikhil Gahro;
Chief Financiat Officer Diretta
q DIN: 01277756

Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Secretary
1051 W No, ACS: 32003

Place: Mumbal
Date: 18 May 2020



Creixent Special $teels Limited
Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
[Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the period from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to ended 31
March 2019
INCOME
Revenue from operations
Gross sales 27 2,609.04 1,125.37
Other operating income 27 30.40 5.65
Total revenue from operations 2,639.44 1,131.02
Other Income 28 26.28 14.83
Total lncome (1) 2,665.72 1,145.85
EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed 1,977.84 1,107.68
Purchase of stock-in-trade 1.28 1.33
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock In trade and work-in-progress 29 {34.48}) (238.49]
Employee benefits expense 30 117.00 55.71
Finance costs 31 319.18 147.61
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 213.27 126.03
Power and fuel expense 287.27 116.61
Other expenses 33 337.96 117.66
Total Expenses {)l} 3,219.32 1,434.14
Loss before exceptional items and tax {1-I} {553.60) [288.29]
Exceptional items (Met] 34 - 27.00
Loss before tax {553.60) (315.29)]
Tax enpense f (credit]:
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax 4.62} (2.50)
Loss for the year / period {548.98) (312.79)

Other comprehensive [loss) f income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Re-measurement gains {losses} on defined benefit plans 13.41} 0.29
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income 10.23} 0.02

hems that will be reclassified to profit or loss In subsequent periods

Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations (25.69} 16.75
Total other comprehensive (loss) / incoma for the year [ period [29.33} 17.07
Total comprehensive loss for the year / period (578.31) (295.72)

Total comprehensive loss for the year / period attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (307.78} (159.77)
Non controlling interests {270.53) {135.95)

Loss for the year / period attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (293.67} {167.99)
Non controlling interests {255.31} {144.80)

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year / period attributable to:

Cwners of the Parent {14.13} 8.22
Nan controlling interests {15.22} 8.85
Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each: 35

[1) Basic (293.67} {309.76)
(2} Diluted {293.67} {309.76)
See accompanying notes to the conselidated financial st ts

I terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

mar Sureka Seshagiri Rac M.V.S.
Chi :xechi_ve Officer Director
\ . DIN; 01277756
A \ L \L.\“" o - }
L‘ﬂ-"‘ v’ / ?\
Place: Mumbai Keshav Anand Nikhil Bahro
Date: 18 May 2020 Chief Financial Officer Direct;

{\ . DIN: 01277756
414%

Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Secretary
ICSI M Mo. ACS: 33003



Creinent Special Steels Lirmited
Consolidated $Statement of Cash Flows jor the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupaes crores, unless otherwise statad)

Particulars For the year ended For the period from 27
31 March 2020 Fehruary 2018 to endad 31
March 2019

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met profit before tax 1553.60) [315.29)
Adjusted for .
Depraclatlon and amortization expenses 213.27 12603
Interest income {1155} {854
Intarest expansas 14918 147 61
Lass on sale of lixed assets {0.01} -
Unrealised exchange loss/ (gain) 353 {1.72)
Gain arising of fi ial i nents deslgnated as FYTPL {7.55} -
Provislon/ liabilily wrltlen back {4.68}
Provislon on invemorias 36,68 G
Gain on sala of investmeants (0.09) -
Provision for non recoverable advancas 1.80

550,64 3344
Cpurating profit bafore working capital changes 12.96) {1.85)
Woerking copital adjustments:
Increase in inventories {235.36) {d475.02)
Increase in trade and othar recaivables {70.49| {30.79)
Increase in trade and other liabllities 114.00 267.37
12! Wi In provisi {147 167

(193,32) | (236.77)
Cash flows used in operations 1196.28) 123862}
Ineome taxes paid (net} {112} {1.11)
et cash used In cperating actlvities (197.40) 1239.73)

8. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant & i including under devel t 1128.91] {27.60)

Paymant for purchase of debt Instrument - {190.95)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and agquipment 0,28 .

Met cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries - {345 48)

Proceeds from sale of subsidlarles “ .

Purchase of invastments (31.50]

Proceeds from sale of investmants 3159 -

Intarest received 1047 9.78

Met cash used in investing acthvities (11807} {563.13)

€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interast paid {234.24) (11187}

Payment of kease liabiliies (1.04) .

Proceeds fram di | of partial inty in a subsidiary that dees not involve loss of - 0858

control

Frogeeds of long term borrowings 20789 615,16

Repayments of bong term borrowings - {2.12)

Proceeds of short term borrowings (net) 2134z 154,21

Expanses incurred on increase in authorised share capital - {2.55}

Praceeds from issue of equity shara capltal - 10.00

Net cash generated from financing activities 186.01 96841

Net {decrease) / increase dn cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {129.44) 165.55

Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year / pariod 165.55 -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / parlod 36.11 165.55

*Rs. 2

L. The cash flow statement 15 prepared using the “indirect method™ set out in |ND AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

2, Reconciliation between the upening and closing balances In the Balance sheet for liabilities ariging from financing actwitios;

Particulars As at 31 March | Acquired on | Cash flows other Asat3l
2020 businass adjustrents | March 2019

cambination

Long term borrowings 3,050, 74 - 207 By 25 ;_9' 7 817 66

Short tarm borrowinas 367,62 - 21342 | 154.21

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings (including premium payable 169.07 - {234.24] 31988 8343

on fedemphon of debentures)

Partlculars #s at 31 March | Acquired on | Cash flows other Asat 27
2019 business adjustrnents | February 2018

Long term baorrowings 281766 2,003.07 610.04 15.430.711

short term borrowings 154.21 8457 154,21 1402.991

Intarast accrusd but not due on k ings {including pramium payabl 8343 47.69 {111,87] 147 61 -
on redemption of debentures)

See actompanying notes to the sonsslidated financial stat: /

In terms of pur report attached

For and on behalf of the@jqrd of Difectors
For Deloltte Hasking & Sells LLP r\l"{\
ered Accountants

—

—_—

ash Sharma Rajhumar Sureka Seshaglri Rao MLV.S,

Chiaf £ ecunv{ﬂﬁi:er Direciar
'i . .I \ DIN: 01277756
LJ;\M" s~ %D ~
Place: Mumbal Keshay Anand Nikhil Gahrotl
Date: 18 May 2020 Chiaf Financial Officer Diractar
« Dim: 01277
, ]
Shyam Dikkatwar
Company Sacratary

ICS1 M W, ACE: 33003
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2.1

2.2

Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

General information

Creixent Special Steels Limited {“the Company”) is incorporated in India on 27 Fehruary 2018 under the Companies
Act, 2013 with its registered office located at QR No. 50-51, Park Avenue Colony, Jindal Road, Dhimrapur, Raigarh —
496001, Chattisgarh.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group) along with its associate and joint venture
companies are engaged in manufacturing and marketing of Sponge Iron, Steel and Ferro Alloys,

Statement of compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The aforesaid Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 were approved
by the board of directors in the meeting held on 18 May 2020.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

The Consolidated financial statements for the previous year had been prepared for the period starting from 27
February 2018, i.e. the date of incorporation of the Company to 31 March 2019. Also, the Company acquired Monnet
Ispat and Energy Limited, its subsidiary, on 31 August 2018 hence consolidated financial statements of previous year
comprised figures of the acquired subsidiary/ Group from 31 August 2018, i.e., the acquisition date to 31 March 2019,
Accardingly, the figures of current year are not comparable with the corresponding figures of the preceding period.

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest crore, except
when otherwise indicated.

Current and non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* Jtis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal gperating cycle. it
is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
* it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
* it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
¢ itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
s itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Group does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only,
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Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Basis of consolidation

The Cansolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities {including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

¢ has power over the investee
¢ is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
+ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The Company reassess to whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally,
The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including;

¢ the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

* potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

+ rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

+ any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders” meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the period are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure:

Like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries are
cambined.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.5

Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date.

In case of bargain purchase, before recognizing gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists
clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the husiness combination as a bargain purchase, Thereafter,
the Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed
and recognizes any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group then reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase.
If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Group recognizes it in other comprehensive income and
accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve, This gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there does not exist clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Greup
recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing, directly in equity as capital reserve.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement, Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture,

Distributions received from an associate or a joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
{which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
assaciate or joint venture.



Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment,
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there any is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment in an
associate or a joint venture and that event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net
investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary
to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate
or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies
a. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and it can be
measured reliably.

Sale of goods

The Group recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer
in terms of the contract at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled to
in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group recognises revenue in terms of the contract which is generally at the point in time when the products
are delivered to the customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is the point of time when
the control over the product is transferred to the customer.

In contracts where freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as
a separate performance obligation and revenue is recognised when such freight services are rendered.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions,
incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items as per the terms of the contract.

The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties or governments such as goods
and service tax levied on sales.



Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the effective
jnterest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b. Foreign currency transactions and foreign operations:

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is also the parent company’s
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency {foreign currencies} are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated, Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into INR using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity {and attributed to non-controliing interests as appropriate).

¢. Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

The Group determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs
incurred on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Group borrows generally and uses the funds for
obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditure on that asset.

The Group suspends capitalisation of berrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active
development of a qualifying asset.



Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

d. Government Grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that The Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which The Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or
when performance obligations are met.

e, Employee benefits;

i} Short term employee benefits:
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the
services,

ii} Long term employee benefits:
Compensated absences are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial
valuation using projected unit credit method.

jil) Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:
Defined contribution plans:
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit retirement benefits plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from
employees’ services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment and other long
term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive (ncome, Actuarial valuations are carried out at the end
of each annual reporting period for defined benefit plans.

The Group makes monthly contributions to provident fund authorities for qualifying employees.

f. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the period as determined in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.



Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 - Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation is to be
applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. The adoption of Appendix C to Ind
AS 12 did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price (net of any trade discounts and rebates),
any import duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing
costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.

Cost of major inspectionf/overhauling is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of
the previous inspection/overhauling {as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised.

Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, as capital work
in progress. Upon completion, such properties are transferred to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment and the depreciation commences.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantie or remove an asset or restore a site to its former
condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring
the site is capitalized aleng with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding
liability is recognized.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
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An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gain/loss on de-recognition are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for assets is the
cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized
30 as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and properties under construction} less their residual
values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories of assets located in India, in whose case the life of
the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.:

Class of property, plant and equipment  useful lives
Plant and machinery at SMS division 20 years
Rolls in rolling mill and bar mill 5 years

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates
them separately based on estimate of their specific useful lives.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Major overhau! costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaul.
The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets:

At the end of each reporting periad, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any}. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corparate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired,

Recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognised.

k. Leases

The Group as a lessor

Leases for which The Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When The Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group as a lessee
Policy applicable prior to 01 April 2019

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining halance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset, other than lease hold land, is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term however, rent expenses shall not be straight-lined, if escalation in rentals is in line with
expected inflationary cost.

Policy applicable from 01 April 2019

Effective 01 April 2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases' and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on the date of initial application i.e. 01 April 2019, The Group has used the modified retrospective
approach for transitioning to Ind AS 116.

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, The Group assesses whether: (i) the contact
involves the use of an identified asset {ii) The Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii} The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset,
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At the date of commencement of the lease, The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU"} and a
cotresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, The
Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liahilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
avents or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use} is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is

determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate imptlicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if The Group changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in
the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash fiows.

l. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labour and
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss} for the year by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders,
share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
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decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed
to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date,

Provisions, contingencies and commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the abligation.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is :

i) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one orf more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

ii) apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

- itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order {(net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets,
Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a
cantract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

e Cash and cash equivalents
The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of unencumbered balances with banks.

¢ Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is subseguently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amaunt gutstanding.

o Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

An investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income is measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.
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* Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

* Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and
other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

» Compound financial instruments
The components of compound financial instruments issued by the Group are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The amount classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

* Impairment

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost and trade receivables.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12
month expected credit losses.

+ De-recognition of financial assets and financial liahilities
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expires or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the group’s Balance Sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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* Falr value of financial instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses a variety ¢f methods and
assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date, The methods
used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and
dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value and such value
may actually not be realized at that amount.

2.7 Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2.6 above, the Group is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these Consolidated Financial Statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented, that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent
upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal
and external factors including relative efficiency, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset,
anticipated technological changes, historical planned and scheduled maintenance etc. It is possible that the estimates
made based on existing experience are different from the actual outcomes within the next financial periods and could
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Determining whether the property, plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimate for the recoverable value
of property, plant and equipment. The recoverable value computation by fair value method using cost
approach involves Management relying on third party quotations of similar assets, expert’s data bank for
construction rates and the indices, as considered by its independent valuation expert in arriving at the fair
value. Any subsequent changes in the above input factors could impact the carrying value of property, plant
and equipment.

Impairment of investments in joint- ventures and associates

Determining whether the investments in joint ventures and associates are impaired requires an estimate in the value in
use of investments. In considering the value in use, the management have anticipated the businesses/operations of the
investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the operations mentioned above could
impact the carrying value of investments.

Provisions and contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant
judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. The management of the Parent used
significant judgment, basis the legal opinion from an independent expert, with regards to interpretation of the National
Company Law Tribunal’s order for establishing extinguishment of contingent liabilities.
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Fair value measurements

when the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial statements cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values, Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liguidity
risk, credit risk and volatility.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies,

2.8 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of a strain of the new coronavirus {"COVID-
19"} as a pandemic. The Group's operations were impacted due to shutdown of its plants following nationwide lockdown
by the Government of India in view of COVID-19. With easing of some restrictions, the Group restarted the integrated
steel making operations in May 2020,

Based on initial assessment, the Management does not expect any significant medium te long term impact on the
business of the Group due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has evatuated the possible effects on the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventory and receivables basis the internal and external sources of
information and determined, exercising reasonable estimates and judgements, that the carrying amounts of these assets
are recoverable. Having regard to the above, and the Group’s liquidity position, there is no material uncertainty in
meeting the financial obligations over the foreseeable future,

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements and the Group will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

2.9 Recent Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS): -

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no
such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2020.
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{Amaunt In Rupees craras, unless otherwlse stated)

5. Investments in joint ventures and associates

a. Investmaents in aquity shares
Investments In Joint ventures {unquoted)
Monnet Ecomatster Enviro Private Limited
14,211,363 [March 31, 2019 : 14,211,363 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Mandakini Coal Company Limited
39,299,800 {March 31, 2019 : 39,295,800) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
MP Monnet Mining Company Limited
980,000 (March 31, 2012 : 930,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Urtan North Mining Company Limited
5,751,347 {March 31, 2019 : 5,751,247) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Invgstments In assoclate companies [quoted}
Monnet Power Co Limited {refer note il below)
220,101,460 {March 31, 2019 : 220,101,460} Equity sharas af Rs.10 each fully paid up

Less: investments classified as held for sale [refer note li below)
Monnet Ecomaister Enviro Private Limited
14,211,363 {March 31, 2019 : 14,211,363] Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Aggregate book value of quoted Investments
Aggregate market value of quoted Investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Note:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

i. The invastments in aquity shares of joint ventures and associates are acquired consequent to acquisition of Monnet Ispat and Energy

Limited during the previous year, the fair value of which is determined to be Rs.Nil,

ii. Post board approval, investment in Monnet Ecomaister Enviro Private Limited has been classified as held for sale for detailed

information refer note 36.

iii. These consclidated financial statement does net include financial information of Monnet Power Company Limited {MPCL), which
ceased to be an associate of the Group upon initiation of its liquidation as per Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code for liquidation of the
Corporate Debtor, No adjustment is required in respect of losses if any, of MPCL since carrying value of investments is nil and there is

no continuing obligation to bear further losses by the Group

6. Investments

a. Investments at fair value through OCI {quoted}
Interactive Financ‘l.aJ Services Limited [IFSL)
1,300,000 {March 31, 2019 : 1,300,000 Equity shares of Re.1 each fully pald up
Aditya Bira Capital Limited
2,100 {March 31, 2019 : 2,100{} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited
5,200 {March 31, 2019 : 5,200) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Grasim Industries Limited
1,500 {March 31, 2019 : 1,500] Equity shares of Rs. 10 gach fully peid up
XL Energy Limited (formerly XL Telecom Limited}
166,808 [March 31, 2019 ; 166,808) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Kamanwala Housing Construction Limited
63,343 {March 31, 2019 : 63,243) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Indiabulis Real Estate Limitad
25,000 {March 31, 2019 : 25,000] Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Rattanindia Infrastructure Limited
73,750 {March 31, 2019 : 73,750 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Naueon Towers Limited {formerly known as Sujana Towers Lirnited)
12,500 {March 31, 2019 ; 12,500] Equity shares of Rs,10 each fully paid up

Indiabull Integrated Services Limited {formerly known as Soril Holdings and Yentures Limited)

3,125 {March 31, 2019 : 3,125} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Bellary Steel Limited

803,243 (March 31, 2019 : 803,243) Equity shares of Re.1 =ach fully paid up
Fianaer Investment Limited

23,392 {March 31, 2019 : 23,392) Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up

Crrisa Sponge lron & Steet Limited {rafer note | below)

1,994,633 {March 31, 2019 : 1,994,633 } Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Nu Tek India Limited

480,000 (March 31, 2019 : 480,000] Equity shares of Rs.5 each fully paid up

(b} ¢ In Mutual Funds (g J]
SBl MF Magnum Tax Gain
55,123 {March 31, 2019 : 55,123) units
Nippon India Mutual fund ETF liquid BeES
25 [March 31, 2019 : 25) units

* Rs.41,702 # Rs, 3,750 WH Rs, 10,875
Aggregate book value of quoted Investments
Apgeregate market value of quoted Investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments

i. Pasis Board resolution, investment in Orrisa Sponge fron & Steel Limited has been classified as held for sale for detailed informaticn

refer nota 36,

0.05
0.01 0.02
0.08 0.11
0.07 012
* 0.01
0.03 0.07
010 023
0.02 0.02
4 L
0.01 0.10
0.15 g
0.07 0.07
0.01
0.59 0.77
Q.16 0.22
0.75 0.99
0.75 0.99
0.75 0.99
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{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

7. Other financial assets (Non current)

Bank deposits (having maturity more than 12 months)*
Other receivables

Security Deposits [unsecured, considered good)

*Lien marked bank deposits

8. Non Current tax assets {Net)

Income tax paid [net of provision for tax)

9. Other non-current assets

Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good

Other loans and advances {Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits

Prepaid expenses

Advance to gratuity fund

Less: Provision for impairment
Total

10. Inventories
{Valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value}

Raw Materials {Includes goods in transit Rs. 15.01 crores (21 March 2019: Rs, 39.37

crores))
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods

Stores and spares {includes goods in transit Rs. 0.69 crores (31 March 2019: Rs. NILJ}

Less : Provision for impairment of inventory
Total

Mote:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4.69 0.68
12,73 12.73
6,93 5.17
24,35 18.58
4.69 0.27
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
3.25 213
3.25 2,13
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
18.51 5.93
3.39
0.34
- 0.04
21.90 6.36
0.55) -
21.35 6.36
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
337.72 227.23
4,95 573
369,97 350.40
146.17 75.45
252.81 653.81
{1.32)
857.49 658.81

Il. Inventory of finished goods includes inventory aggregating to Rs.314.51 crores {PY Rs. 253.94 crores) valued at net
realisable value. Write-down of inventories arising out of the above amounting to Rs.36.68 crores (PY Rs. 50.04 crores)

has been recoginised as an expense during the year.

I, Inventories have been pledged as security against cartain bank borrowings, details relating to which has been

described in note 19,

11, Trade receivables

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables - Unsecured, considered good 51.77 32,98
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -
Trade Receivables — credit impaired 0.15 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 0.15) -
Total 51.77 32.98
Dues from directors or companies where directors are interested - 0.03
The Credit period on sale of goods ranges from 30 to 90 days.
Ageing of receivables that are past due but not impaired
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
90-180 days 4.7% 1.9%
> 180 days 119 14,28
Total 5.98 16.27

Part of trade receivables have been given as collateral towards borrowings detalls refating to which has been described in

note 19,

Credit risk management regarding trade recelvables has been described in note 45 {5].
Trade receivables from related parties details has been described in note 42,
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12. Cash and bank balances

12 a. Cash and cash equivalents :
Balances with banks

On current accounts

On Bank deposits with upto three months maturity
Cash on hand

12 b. Bank balances other than above

Earmarked bank balances *

Other bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months at
inception

Other bank deposits with maturity more than 3 menths but less than 12 months at
inception {lien marked) #

Notes:

* Earmarked bank balances pertaining to unclaimed dividend.

# Other bank deposits are provided as collateral against credit facilities.
13, Derivative Assets

Forward contracts {refer note 45.4)

14. Loans

Loans
- to related parties* (Refer Note 42}
- to Others #
Less: Provision for Impairment
Total
* Loans are given for business purpose

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
35.01 23.29

1.04 142,20

0.06 0.06

36.11 165,55

0.11 0.17

73.46

56.66 47.95

130.23 48.12

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

7.75

775

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

0.14
0.36

{0.14}

9.72

0.36

9.72

# It includes advance for properties, which upon approval of plan to sale these properties in their present condition by
the Board of directors, the management has regarded the sale to be highly probable and has initiated the process to
locate a buyer. Accordingly, these properties have been classified as held for sale at estimated fair value less cost to sale
of Rs.5.96 crores based on the recent comparable transaction and the resultant impairment loss of Rs.1.8 crores has been

recognised.

Note :
Loans Receivable - Unsecured, consldered good

15. Other financial assets [current}

Interest accrued on deposits and loans
Advance for property *

0.50 9.72

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1.45 0.39

= 9.06

1.45 9.45

* Upon approval of plan to sale these properties in their present condition by the Board of directors, the management
has regarded the sale to be highly probable and has initiated the process to locate a buyer. Accordingly, these properties
have been classified as held for sale at estimated fair value less cost to sale of Rs.5.96 crores based on the recent
comparable transaction and the resultant impairmant loss of Rs.1.8 crore has been recognised.

16. Other current assets

Advance to employees

Prepaid expenses

Advances to suppliers

Balances with GST/ Excise Authorities
Indirect tax balances Refund due
Total

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
0.52 0.32
10.68 10.21
101.98 134,60
13.94 17.94
8.04 -
135.16 163.07
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17. Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
{a} Authorised:
Equity shares of the par value Rs. 10 each 15,000,000 15.00 15,000,000 15.00
{b) Issued and subscribed
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 10,000,000 10.00 10,000,000 10.00
10,000,000 10.00 10,000,000 10.00

{c) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period/ year

Issuance of shares upon incorporation 20,000 0.02
Add: tssued during the period 9,980,000 9.98
Outstanding as at the 31 March 2019 10,000,000 10.00
Add: Issued during the period - _

Outstanding as at the 31 March 2020 10,000,000 10

{d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has single class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to recelve the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

shareholding.

{e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are set out below:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo. of Shares % of shares No. of Shares % of shares
JSW Steel Limited 4,800,000 48.00% 4,800,000 48.00%

AION Investments Private Il Limited 5,200,000 52.00% 5,200,000 52.00%
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18, Other equity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

I. Reserves and surplus

a) Retained earnings (464,21) [170.54)
b} Fair valuation difference on financlal instruments 44,96 44.96
¢) Capital reserve on bargain purchase 475.80 475.80

1l. Other comprehensive income

a} Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans {1.50) 0.14
b) Foreign currency translation reserve 4.31) 8.05
¢} Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (0.08) 0.03

50.66 358.44

a) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the {losses)/ profit that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the group.

b} Capital reserve on bargain purchase
The reserve is created pursuant to the acquisition of business being the differance of liabilities and assets acquired.

¢} Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans
This amount represents the impact of actuarial gains and losses on the funded obfigation due to change in financial assumptions, change in demographic
assumptions, experience adjustments, etc. recognised through other comprehensive income,

d} Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group's
presentation currency {i.e. Indian rupees) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve,
Exchange differences previously accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

e} Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments in other comprehensive income. This amount will be
reclassified to retained earnings on derecognition of the equity instrurments.

f) Fair valuation difference on financial instruments

The Group has issued Redeemable Preference Shares (RPS) during the period ended 31 March 2019, The Group has computed the liability portion of RPS as the
present valug of the contractual obligations associated with the instrument and the difference between the issue amount of the RPS and the liability so computed
has been treated as the 'Fair valuation difference on financial instuments issued to owners' and grouped under other equity.
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Lreixent Special Steels Limited
Motes to C lidated Financial 5
[Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

22. Income Taxes

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Pursuant to the Taxation Law [Amendment] Ordinance, 2019 {"Ordinance’] subsequently amended in Finance Tax issued by Ministry of Law and Justice on 20
September 2019 which is effective 1 April, 2019 domestic comganies have the option to pay corperats incoms tax at 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess subject to
certaln conditions, The Companyias of the group basis the impact assessment of Ordinance has decided to continue with the existing tax structure. MAT iz assessed on
book profits ad)usted far cartaln items allowed under the income tax provisions. The rate of MAT for the year ended 31 March 2020 is 21.34%, MAT paid in excess of
regular income tax durlng a year can be set off against regular income taxes within a period of fifteen years succeeding the fiscal year in which MAT credit arises subject

ko the limite rescr|bed

Reconciliation of tax exp and the ac

ing profit

Riplied by India’s d '

tax rate for the year indicated are as follows:

For the year endad 31 Far the period ended
Particulars March 2020 31 March 2019
Loss bafors tax (553.60) (315.29)
Enacted tax rate In India 34.94 34.94
Expected tax beneflt at statutory tax rate {188.82) {111.24)
Effact of different tax rates of subsidlaries in other jurlsdictions 5,56 3.52
Expenses not deduct|ble in determining taxable profits 301
Income exempt from tasation 142
Adjustmeants |n respect of currant income tax of pravious years - -
Dreferrad tax assets not recognised 176,21 253.64
Effect of recognition of deferred tax assets on unusad tax lasses to the axtent of deferred tax
liability recognised on temporary differences of property, plant and equipment - BLSE
Total [4.62) 12.50)
Effective tax rate 0.83% 0.79%

The Group has not recognised MAT credit amounting to Rs.18.25 crores (Rs.2.42 crores relating to AY 2010-11 and Rs.15.83 Crores relating to AY 2014-15} pertaining to the business
acquired during the period due to uncertalnty regarding utihsation within the stipulated peried of 15 years.

Recognised f Recoguised /
Deferred tax balance in velation to As at 31 March 2019 Acquired pursuant to {reversed} through {reversed] through | As at 31 March
business combination other comprehenslve 2020
profit and loss loss
Froperty, plant and equipment 124.73 {46.30) 7843
Intangible assets {13.10] - - - {13.1C)
Carried forward business loss f unabsorbed depreciation 1141.83) 24,23 - 1107 .50)
Equity component of financlal instruments {14.61) - Q.64 {13.97)
Derivatives (2,64} (2.64)
Provisions for Impairment of Inventory/Trade receivables - {0,20) (0200
Fremium sccrued on liability component of financial instruments
213 - 2.92 - 611
COthers- IND AS adjustments 17.10 1481 31,91
Tatal deferred tax {liabilities)/ assats 25.58) - 3.98 .64 [20.96)
Recognised Rlecognised /
Deferred tas balance In relation ta At at 27 February 2018 Acquired pursuant te [reversegdj tl|ro{|gl| {reversed} through | As at 31 March
business combination other comprehensive 2019
profit and loss Ince
Property, plant and equlpment 12472 — - 124,73
Intangible assets - 1310 - - 113101
Carrled forward business loss / unabsorbed depreclation {14183} - - (141.83]
Equity component of financial [nstruments - - (14,61} {14.61)
Pramium accrded on liabllity component of financial instruments
- 2.13 - 213
Others- IND A5 adjustments 17.10 - 17.10
Total deferved tax [liabilities}/ assets - {13.10) 213 {14.61) (25.58)
Expiry schedule of losses on which deferred tax assets is not recognised |5 a5 under:
Expiry of losses (as per local tax laws) 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Beyond 5 Years Indefinlte Total
Business losses - 482.70 1,928.32 . 2,411.02
Unabsorbed depreclation . - - . 4,420.97 4,440.97
Long term capital losses 2,20 - 16,33 - 319.59
Tatal 3.20 - 482,70 2.244.71 4,430.97 7.211.58

Based on legal advice from an Independent expert, the management b5 of the view that vide NCLT order dated July 24, 2018 in response to the Resolution Plan submitted by the consortium of J5W Steel Limited
and AION Investments Private || Limited for acqulsition of Monnet lspat and Energy Limited ("MIEL") under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 |"NCLT Order"}, the Group will be entitled to carry forward the
aforamantioned accumulated lesses of MIEL pertaining to the perled prior to acquisition and off-set the same against the future taxable Income of MIEL.




Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

23, Trade payables

Acceptances

Other than acceptances

- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises {refer note 44};

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Total

Note:

Disclosure with respect to related party transactions is given in note 42.

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
258.20 134.16
1.35 3.36
230.43 262.56
489.98 400.08

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 90 days except for SME's which are settled within 45 days.

For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 45,

24, Derivative Liabilities

31 MARCH 2020 31 MARCH 2019

Forward contracts {refer note - 45.4} 0.20
0.20 -
25. Other financial liabilities {Current}
{at amortised cost): Non-current Current
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 19) - - 301.54 276.69
Interest payable: - -

Interest accrued but not due on bhorrowings - - 67.94 48.06
Unclaimed dividends B - 0.11 0.17
Security deposits and retention money - 11.06 1.51
Payahle for capital expenditures - - 19.05 19.14
Premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures 38.19 13.30 - -
Premiurn on redemption of preference shares 62.94 22,07 - -
Acceptances for capital goods - 27.11 -
Others - - 22.04 9.52

101.13 35.37 448.85 355.09

The Group has opted to avail moratorium on payment of interest falling due between 01 April 2020 to 31 May 2020 and 01 March 2020 to
31 May 2020 on term loan and cash credit respectively, from a bank on account of COVID-19 under the RBI guidelines and accordingly,

interest accrued as on 31st March 2020 Is payable after completion of moratorium period.

26, Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Statutory dues
Export Obligation deferred Income

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
16.97 20.13
12.07 10.59
3.83 -
32.87 30.72




Creixent Special Steels Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

27. Revenue From Operations

Sale of products
Sale of services
Less: rebate & discounts

Other operating revenues
Sale of scrap
Export incentives
Total

For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020  February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
2,611.67 1,120.02
0.2 -

(2.88) {4.65}

2,609.04 1,125.37

23.49 4.81

6.91 0.84

2,639.44 1,131.02

The Group has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue:

For the year ended | For the period from 27
Particulars 31 March 2020 | February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
Revenue from contracts with customer - Sale of products {including freight income) 2,609.04 1,125.37
Other operating revenue 30.40 5.65
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,639.44 1,131.02
India 2,392.97 1,054.73
Outside India 246,47 76.29
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,639.44 1,131.02
Timing of revenue recognition
At a pointin tirme 2,639.44 1,131.02
Qver a period of time = -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,639.44 1,131.02
For the year ended | For the period from 27
Product Wise 31 March 2020 | February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
Sponge lron 1,176,582 726.55
Billets 228.58 a5.21
Ferro Alloys 144 89 91.15
Pellets 503.37 49.71
Structure/ TMT 452,87 183.87
Pig Iron 93.87 21.39
Cthers 39.04 23.14
Total 2.639.44 1,131.02
Contract Balances
For the year ended |
Particulars For the year ended | For the period from 27
31 March 2020 | February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
Trade Receivables 5177 32,93
Contract liabilities (Advance from customers) 16.97 20.13

The Group does not have any significant adjustments between the cantracted price and revenue recognised in the profit & loss

account,

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

There s no warranty clause for goods sold by the Group.

Amount of revenue recognized from amounts included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year Rs. 20.13 crores

{previous year Rs. 11.10 crores).

28, Dther income

Interest Income earned on finangial assets that are not designated as FYTPL

Bank depaosits
Cther interest income
Rent received

Fair valye gain arising from financial instruments designated as F¥TPL

Liabilities written back
Other miscellaneous income
Total

For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020  February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
8.35 7.58
2.20 0.94
151 1.12
7.55 4,43
4.68 .
0.99 075

26.28

14.83




Creixent Special Steels Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

29. Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year / period
Finished goods

Work-in-process

Total Inventories at the beginning of the year / period

Acquired pursuant to business combination
Finished goods
Work-in-process

Inventaries at the end of the year / period
Finished Goods

Work-in-process

Total Inventories at the end of the year / period
Total

30. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and amenities

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 39)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

31. Finance Costs

Interast on debt and borrowings

Other ancillary borrowing costs

Premium on redemption of debentures
Premium on redemption of preference shares
Bank Charges

Interest expense on lease liability

Unwinding of discount on financials liabilities
Total

32, Depreciation and amortlsation expense

Depraciation of property, plant and equipments (refer note 4}
Depreciation of Right of use assets

For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020  February 2018 to ended
31 March 2018
334.71
573
340.44
98.53
- 3.37
101.95
369,97 334.71
4.95 5.73
374.92 340.44
{34.48} {238.49)
For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020 February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
107.24 51.38
1.2 2.66
2.04 1.67
117.00 5571
For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020  February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019
24451 109.70
5.68 1.06
24.88 13.20
AQ.88 22.07
0.05 -
0.45 -
2,73 1.48
319.18 147.61
For the year ended  For the period from 27
31 March 2020  February 2013 to ended
31 March 2019
21243 126.03
0.84 -
213.27 126.03




Creixent Special Steels Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

33. Other expenses

For the period from 27
February 2018 to
ended 31 March 2019

27.91
441
23.08

16.69
2.25
9.63
6.15
5.23
3.09
4,70
0.24
0.46
0.13
0.34
1.85

11.50

For the year ended
31 March 2020
Stores and spares consumed 124.09
Distribution expenses 79.50
Other manufacturing expenses 44,39
Repairs & maintenance
- Machinery 18.46
- Building 2.38
- Others 2.02
Legal & professional charges 12.79
Water charges 9.01
Insurance charges 8.68
Security service charges 8.06
Rent 1.90
Rates & taxes 0.57
Directors sitting fees 0.10
Loss from partnership firm
Bank charges -
Provision For Doubtful Debts 1.80
Loss on sale of fixed assets 4.24
Miscellaneous expenses 19,97
337.96

117.66




Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

34, Exceptional items {Net)

For the year ended For the period from 27
31 March 2020  February 2018 to ended
31 March 2019

Plant Startup Expenses - 27.00

- 27.00

Exceptional items for the period ended 31 March 2019 comprise of:

(d) Plant Startup Expenses of Rs 27.00 crores which comprise of various revenue expenses incurred to restart and make operational,
facililities at Raigarh plant of the Company



Creixent Special Steels Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

35. Earnings Per Share {(EPS)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Loss for the year as per Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to equity shareholders [A] (293.67) (167.99)
{Rs. in crores)

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS {In Nos.) 10,000,000 5,423,216.08
Effect of dilution: [B] - -
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS [C] 10,000,000 5,423,216.08
Earnings per equity share in Rs.

Baslc [A/B] (293.67) {(309.76)
Diluted [A/C] (293.67) {309.76)
Face Value of each equity share in Rs. 10 10

36. Assets Held for Sale

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Preference shares in Orissa Sponge Iron & Steel Ltd {refer note | below) - 2.92
Loan to Orissa Sponge Iron & Steel Ltd — 0.39
Investment in equity shares of Monnet Ecomaister Enviro Pvt Ltd (refer 0.001 0.001
note Il below}
Assets of Monnet Cements Limited {refer note lll below) 0.17 -
Assets of PT Sarwa Sembada Karya Bumi (refer note IV below) 32.34 #
Advance for properties 5.96 -
38.47 3.31
Liabilities
Liabilities of Monnet Cements Limited (refer note Il below) 0.003 =
Liabilities of PT Sarwa Sembada Karya Burmi {refer note IV below)} 3.29 -
Total liabilities 3.29 -

t. Post Board approval dated 27 March 2019, a subsidiary of the Group has entered into an agreement for sale of its investment
in preference shares and loan given to Orissa Sponge Iron and Steel Ltd. Accordingly, these amounts have been reclassified as
held for sale at that time at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell, however upon receipt of consideration
thereafter on 16 April 2019 the same stands settled.

I A subsidiary of the Group has entered into an MOU with Ecomaister Company Limited, South Korea for transfer of its holding
in )V company Monnet Ecomaister Enviro Private Limited having an initial carrying value of Rs.14.21 crores (provision of Rs.
14.21 crores, hence net book value is zero) for a total consideration of Rs. 10000 (Rupees Ten Thousand). Accordingly, the Group
has measured the said investment at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and classified it as held-for-
sale.

NI, In board meeting held on 20 January 2020, resolution was passed to sale entire stake in Monnet Cement Limited.
Accordingly, the Group has re-classified its assets and liabilities as held for sale.

IV, In board meeting held on 21 Qctober 2019 , resolution was passed to sale entire stake in PT Sarwa Sembada Karya Bumi.
Accordingly, the Group has re-classified its assets and liabilities as held for sale.



Crakxent Speclal Steels Umited
Hotes to C lidated Financlal
{Amount in Rupees arores, unless otherwlse stated)

37. Material partly-owned subsidiaries

ts as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

Name Country of Ownership Interest of Creixent Speclal Steels Limited Prindpal Activity
mcorporation
As at 31 Maych 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Monnet Global Limited ULAE. 48.12% 48.12% Manulfacturing
fonnet Enterprise Pte Limited Singapore MNA Untill disselution an 4 Manufacturing company
December 2018
honnet Ispat and Energy Limited India 48.12% 48,12% (w.e.f August 31, |Manufacturing company
2018)

Monnet cement Limited Inlia 48.11% 48.11% Manufacturing ¢ Y
Chornal Exports Private limited India 24.54% {upto January 15, 24.54% Mining Company

20181
Pt Sarwa kembada Karya bumi Indonesia 48.13% 48.12% Mining Company
LLC Black sea Natural resources Republic of Abkhazia A8.17% 48.12% Mining Company
Khasjasmada Mining Company India 47.64% |upto October 5, 47.64% Minlng Compary

2018)
Monnet Sports Foundation India 30.87% [upto January 15, A0.87% Fromation of exports

2018}
Milloret Steel Limited India MA 100% {from March 8, 2018 |Manufacturing Company

upto August 31, 2018, i.e
amalgamated with MIEL)

Accumulated balances of Noa-controfling Interests As at 31 March 2020 Ag at 31 March 2019
Monnet Ispat and Enargy Limited 551.00 806.15
P1. Sarwa Sembada Karya Bumi (subsidiary of WMonnet Glohal {0.08} 0.04
Limited}
Total comprehensive Income alocated to material Non-
countrolling interests
Monnet Ispat and Enargy Limited {255.15] {137.85}
Monnet Glebal Limited {0.12) 0.13)

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries are pravided below. This infarmation is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised Statement of Profit & loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

Revanue

Expsnses

Loss for the year { period

Total comprehensive loss

Attributable te nen-controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Summarksed Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

Current assets
Nor-current assets
Current liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Total equity
Aueributable to:

Equity holders of parant
Non-controlling interest

s 1sed Cash flow a5 at 31 March 2020

Operating

Investing

Flnancing

Met Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Monnet Global Limited Monnet ispat and Energy  Monnet Global Limited Monnet ispat and
Limited Energy Limited
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-19
. 263816 - 1,129.69
4,07 3,152.29 1.2 1,397.73
(4.07) (428,15} {1.99) {280.21)
{4.07) [491.81) 1.99) {262.14)
{0.12) 1255.15) {0.13) {137.85)
Monnet Global Limited Monnet Ispat and Energy ~ Monnet Global Limfted Mononet kspat and
Limited Energy Limited
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-1% 31-Mar-19
33,06 1,225.22 1.2 1,102.08
4,22 3,538 58 34.09 354151
350.87 989.81 82,93 618.46
55.95 2,286.00 92,23 2,047.33
{369.47) 1,485.99 {339.86) 1,977 80
1369,39) 934,99 {339.90) 1,171.65
(0.08) 551.00 0.04 806,15
Maonnet Global Limlted Monnet spat and Energy  Monnet Global Umlted Monnel lspat and
Uimited Energy Limited
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-1%
0.53 {197.28) . 201.34)
- [1128.29) [50.42])
- 185.58 76.31
0.53 {130.11) {175.45)



Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

38, Disclosure of significant investments in jolnt ventures and associates:

1} Disclosure of investment in the following joint ventures :

5.No. Name Country of Ownership Interest of Creixent Special Steels Principal activity
Incorporation Limited (%}
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 Mandakini Coal Company Limited India 16.04% 16.04% Mining Company
2 Urtan North Mining Company Limited India 16.04% 16.04% tMining Company
3 MP Monnet Mining Company Limited India 23.58% 23.58% Mining Campany
4  Monnet Ecomaister Enviro Private Limited India 24.06% 24.06% Manufacturing of PS Balls

2) Disclosure of investment in the following associates :

$.No. Name Country of Ownership Interest of Creixent Special Steels
Incorporation Limited (%)
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 Monnet Power Company Limited * India 13.62% 13.62%

*Monnet Power Company Limited {MPCL), ceased to be an associate of the Company upon initiation of its liguidation as per Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code for liguidation of the Corporate Debtor,

3} The group has no material joint ventures, associates or non controlling interests. Hence, the financial information of such joint ventures, associates or
subsidiaries that have non controlling interests has not been disclosed.
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39, Employee benefit plans

Defined Contribution Plans - General Description

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund, superannuation fund and national pension scheme are defined contribution schemes. The
Group has ne obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group's contribution to the provident fund and ESIC is
Rs.7.72 crores (31 March 2019 Rs. 1.93 crores) {refer note - 30).

Defined Benefit Plans - General Description

Gratuity:

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Gratuity is computed as 15 days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess
of 6 menths and is payable on retirement / termination / resignation. The benefit vests on the employee completing 5 years of service, The Gratuity
plan for the Company is a defined benefit scheme where annual contributions are deposited to an insurer to provide gratuity benefits by taking a
scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Group makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability in the
bocks of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit method. Plan assets also include investments and bank
halances used to deposit premiums until due to the insurance company.

Compensated Absences:
Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation of the group due to death, retirement,
superannuation or resignation, at the rate of daily salary, as per the current accurnulation of leave days.

The plans in India typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, Asset liability matching risk, mortality risk,
concentration risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit,
Currantly, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of
investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

interest risk A fallin the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will
increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A
fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value
of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Mortality risk Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and
payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan hiability is calculated by

reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in
the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the
plan's liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit abligation were carried out at 31 March 2020 by
M/s. K & Pandit Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Defined benefit obligation {'DBO') at the beginning of the period 13.13 -
Acquired pursuant to business combination - 12.86
Current service cost 1.11 0.72
Interest cost 1.02 0.62
Benefits paid {1.23) {1.49)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations - OCI 3.24 0.42

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the period 17.27 13.13




Creixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are, as follows:

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
Acquired pursuant to business combination
Contribution by employer

Benefits paid

Expected Interest Income on plan assets

Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan asset
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation:

Fair value of plan assets
Defined benefit obligation
Amount recognised in the balance sheet (refer note 21)

Amount recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current service cost

Interast expense

Expected return on plan asset

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {refer note 30)

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions

Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest expense)

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:
Gratuity

Investment Details
Investment with Insurance fund

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Discount rate

Expected rate of return on Plan assets

Future salary increases

Attrition Rate

Retirement age

Mortality rate during employment

Sensitivity analysis:-

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

13.17 0.00
0.00 13,85
3.81 0.04
(0.62) (1.46}
1.02 0.61
{0.17) 0.13
17.21 13.17
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
17.21 13.17
17.27 13.13
0.06 {0.04}
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
111 0.72
1.02 0.62
{1.02) {0.61)
1.11 0.73
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
{1.41) .
(1.83) [0.21}
(0.17} {0.13)
(3.41) {0.34})

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Funded Funded

100% 100%

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
6.89% 7.79%
6.89% 7.79%
7.00% 7.00%
2.00% 2.00%

60 years 60 years
Indian assured  Indian assured
lives mortality  Hves mortality

{2006-08) ult {2006-08) ult

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit abligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:-

Gratuity Plan Sensitivity level

Impact on DBO

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Assumptions

Discount rate + 1% +0.25%
-1% -0.25%

Future salary increases +1% +0.25%
-1% -0.25%

Withdrawal rate +1% +0.25%
- 1% -0.25%

(1.59)
1.85
1.83

{1.60}

(0.04)
0.04

{0.32)
0.33
0.34

{032}
0.02

{0.02)

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that change in assumption

would occur in isolation of the another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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The following are the maturity analysis of projected benefit obligations:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting year) 1.10 0.80
Between 2 and 5 years 3.29 2.65
Beyond 5 years 35.07 30.65
Total expected payments 39.46 34.10

Each year an asset liability matching study is performed in which the consegquences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk
and return profiles.
The Group is expected to contribute Rs.0.29 crores 1o its gratuity plan for the next year. The weighted average duration of the plan is 12 years.

Compensated absences

The Group has a policy on compensated absences with provisions on accumutation and encashment by the employees during employment or on
separation from the Group due to death, retirement or resignation. The expected cost of compensated absences is determined by actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary at the balance sheet date.

Compensated Absences 31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Present value of unfunded obligation {Rs. in crores} 5.42 3.54
Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and loss (Rs. in crores) 1.46 0.99
Discount rate (p.a.} 6.89% 7.79%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%
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40, Leases

Operating Lease commitments - Group as lessee
Lease payments of Rs. 0,78 crores have been recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during previous year.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as fallows:

31 March 2019 _
Not later than one year 105
Later than one year and not later than frve years 423
Later than five years 37.40
Total 342,68

Transition Impact to Ind AS 116

{a} Lease - Group as & Lessee

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases' and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on the date
of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019, The Graup has used the modified retrospective approach for transitioning to Ind AS 116,
Consequently, the Group recorded the lease liabillty at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the right of use asset at with right-of-use asset recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for
any prepayments/accruals recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of cur Annuai Report for year ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs 30.42 crore and a lease liability of
Rs 30.42 crore. The effect of this adoption Is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS
116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on
account of lease payments.

Tha leases that the Group has entered with lessors are generally long term in nature and no changes in terms of those leases are
expected due to the COVID-19.

31 MARCH 2020

a. Right of Use Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet 29.58
b. Lease liability racognised in the Balance Sheet 29.83
¢. Depreciation charged to PL account

- Land 0.24

- Building 0.50
d. Interest charged to Profit & Loss Account 0.45
e. Lease payments recognised as expense for the underlying asset Is of low value -
f. Lease payments recognised as expense for short tarm leases 1.90
g Total cash flow for leases 104
h. Carrying value of the right of use assets

- Land 175

- Building 1.83
i. Amounts of lease commitments for leases covered other than in point 5 & 6 above

- Mot later than one year 0.98

- Later than one year and not later than five years 302

- Later than five years 25,22
j- Amounts of lease commitments for leases covered in point 5 & & above

- Mot later than one year 1.86

- Later than one year and not later than five years -

- Later than five years s

The weighted average lessaes incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the Balance sheet on 1 April, 2019 is
ranging between 9.5% to 10%.

The difference between the lease obligation disclosed as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 and the value of the lease ligbilities as of
April 1, 2019 is primarily on account of practical expedients exercised for short term leases, as at adoption of the standard, in
measuring lease liability and discounting tha lease liabilities to the present value in accordance with Ind AS 116.

Reconciliation of Operating Lease commitmants to Lease liabilities as on April 1, 2019 ;

Particulars Amount
{perating lease commitrnents as at March 31, 20192 42.68
[Less}: Impact of discounting on opening lease llability [12.268)
[Less): Short-term leases not recognized as a liability -
Laase liability recognized as at April 1, 2019 30.42
41. ¢ itments and conting

(b} Commitments

{i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on Capital Account and not provided for (Met of advances) of Rs. 26.55
crores {March 31, 2019 - Rs. 144,42 crores)

{li) Rupee equivalent of export obligation to be completed by 23th December, 2021 under EPCG Scheme Rs. 19.99 crores (March 31,
2019 - Rs. NiL crores}

{c) Contingent Liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Performance bank guarantees 10713 69.95
Claim against the Company not acknowledge as debt 52.00 -
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42, Related party disclosures

A. List of related parties

{a) The investing party in respect of which 1 J5W Steel Limited
the reporting enterprise is a joint venture 2 AION Investments Private li Limited

{b} JoInt ventures

1 Mandakani Coal Company Limited {w.e.f. 31 August 2018}
2 Urtan North Mining Company Limited (w.e.f. 31 August 2018}
3 MP Monnet Mining Company Limited {w.e.f. 31 August 2018)
4 Monnet Ecomaister Enviro Private Limited (w.e.f. 31 August 2018}
3 Solace Land Holding Limited {w.e.f. 31 August 2018)
{c} Associate
1 Monnet Power Company Limited {w.e.f. 31 August 2018 to 23 October 2019}
{d) Key managerial personnel (KMP) ;-
i} Director 1 Mr, Nikhil Gahrotra - Director {w.e.f. 31 August 2018}
2 Mr. Seshagiri Rac M.V.S, - Director {w.e.f. 11 October 2018}
3 Mr. Kalpesh Kikani - Director {w.e.f. 31 August 2018)
4 Mrs. Anuradha Bajpai - Independent director (w.e.f. 31 November 2018)
5 Mr. Chirag Bhansali - Independent director {w.e.f. 23 October 2018}
ity Chlef Executive Offlcer Mr. Rajkumar Sureka- (w.e.f. 27 March 2019)
iilj Chlef Financial Officer Mr. Keshav Anand - (w.e.f. 27 March 2019)
iv) Company Secretary Mr. Shyam Dikkatwar - {w.e.f. 27 March 2019}
{e) Enterprises over which KMP or their 1 JSW Steel Coated Products Limited {w.e.f, 31 August 2018)
relatives or investing entity are able to 2 GSI Lucchini 5.P.A {w.e.f. 31 August 2018}
exercise significant influence 3 Amba River Coke Limited {w.e.f. 31 August 2018)
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020

B. The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of buslness:-

Related party transactions Tha vesting party in respect of which Enterprises over which KMP or their
the reporting enterprise Is a Jobnt Jolnt Ventures relatives are able to exercise
venture significant infl ]
Sales of goods
ISW Steel Limited 315t March 2020 3359 E
31st March 2019 9.53
Loan taken
ISW Steel Limited 31st March 2020 90.30
315t March 2019 136.92 -
Loan repaid
15W Steel Limited 315t March 2020 .
315t March 2019 9.12 -
Loan given
Mandskini Coal Company Limited 315t March 2020 014 -
31st March 2019 -
MP Monnet Mining Company Limited 31st March 2020 ¥
J1st March 2019 .
Interest acorued on Loan
JSW Steel Limited 31st March 2020 1646 -
315t March 2019 752 -
Purchase of raw material f stores f fixed assets
15W Steel Limited 31st March 2020 145.58 - .
315t March 2019 67.38 -
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 31st March 2020 - .70
31st March 2012 - - 0.42
GCI Lucchini SPA 315t March 2020 E 4,37
st March 2019 =
Reimt t of Incurred on qur
behalf
JSW Steel Limited 31st March 2020 0.48 =
315t March 2019 9.74 -
Reimb t of exp i d by the
Group
JSW Steel Limited 31st March 2020 253
31st March 2019 -
Issue of debentures
AIQM Investments Private il Limited 31st March 2020 = .
315t March 2019 186.30
Issue of preference shares
JSW Steel Limited 315t March 2020 - -
315t March 2019 310.32
Premium on redemption of pref shares
J5W Steel Limited F1sk March 2020 4088 - -
31st March 2019 2207
Premium on redemption of debent
AION Investrnents Private I Limited 31st March 2020 24.88 -
31st March 2019 13.30 -
Interest on debentures
AION Investments Private 1) Uimited 31st March 2020 0.02
31st March 2019 0.01 -
Interest on preference shares
15w Steel Limited 315t March 2020 0.04 -
315t March 2019 0.02 -
I3sue of equlty shares
JSW Steel Limited 31st March 2020 - -
31st March 2019 4,80 - -
AON Investments Private Il Limited 31st March 2020 - -
315t March 2019 5.20




€. Balances with related parties

Loan given
MP konnet Mining Company Limited® 315t March 2020 0.22
315t March 2019 [
Mandakini Coal Company Limited* 315t March 2020 - 641 -
315t March 2019 E 309
Mannet Ecomaister Eaviro Private Limited.* 315t March 2020 788 -
315t March 2019 E b6.76
Loan taken
JSW Steel Limited - Loan 315t March 2020 215.55 = 3
315t March 2019 125.25 -
Trade and other payables
JSW Stael Limited 31st March 2020 3554
315t March 2019 90.1% -
Amba River Coke Limitad 315t March 2020 - 0.20
315t March 2019 E
Interest payables
JSW Steel Limited 315t March 202¢ .03
315t March 2019 E -
Trade receivables
JSW Steel Limited 315t March 2020 591
315t March 2019 003 -
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 315t March 2020 - - 0.03
a1st March 2019 s 0.08
Payable for premlum on redemption of
preference shares not due
JSW Steel Limited 315t March 2020 62.94 -
315t March 2019 207 -
Payable for premium on redemption of
debentures not due
AION Investrnents Private )l Limited 315t March 2020 38.19
315t March 2019 13.30
Equity share capital
ISW Steel Limited 315t March 2020 4.80
315t March 2019 4,80
AION Investments Private Il Limited 315t March 2020 5.20
31st March 2019 5.20 -
Preference share capital
JSW Steel Limited 31st March 2020 310,32
31st March 2019 310.32
Debentures
AION Investments Private Il Limited 31st March 2020 18630 -
315t March 2019 186.30 - -
# - Rs.40,000
* palances recelvables from these related parties had been provided in books of accounts.
. Detalls relating to r ation of Key Managerial P |
iR ation of Key Managerlal P 1
For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the period from 27
February 2018 to ended 31
March 2019
Short term employee benefits 3.55 0.52
Past Employee benefits -
Other long term henefits
Termination benefits - -
Share based payment -
3.55 0.52
ii} Directors Sitting fees
Name of KMP For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the period from 27
February 2018 to ended 31
March 2019
Ms, Anuracha Ambar Bajpai 0.04 D12

Mr. Chirag Bhansali 0.02
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43. Segment information

The Group is in the business of manufacturing steel products and allied products having similar characteristics and reviewed by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker for assessment of Group’s performance and resource allocation. Accordingly, the Group has only one reportable

operating segment as per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

Revenue from operations:

For the year | For the period

ended 31 March | ended 31 March
Particulars 2020 2019
Within India 2,392.97 1,054.73
Qutside India 246.47 76.29
Total 2,639.44 1,131.02
Neon current assets of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are located as follows:
Particulars Within India Outside India Total
Property, plant and equipment 3,231.77 422 | 323599
Capital work-in-progress 234.21 - 23421
Right of Use assets 2958 29.58
Other Intangible assets 37.50 - 37.50
Qther non-current assets 48.91 0.79 49.70
Total 3,581.97 5.01 | 3,586.98
Non current assets of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are located as follows:
Particulars Within India Outside India Total
Property, plant and eguipment 3,378.92 6.00 | 3,384.92
Capital work-in-progress 150.20 28.53 178.73
Other (ntangible assets 37.50 37.50
(thar non-current assets 6.32 - 6.32
Total 3,572.94 34.53 | 3,607.47

44, Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

The dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to the extent

infarmation available with the company is given below:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1.35 3.36

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the paymant made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified

under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as

a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
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45, Financlal Instruments

45.1 Capital risk management

The Group, being a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain a strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios and establish a
capital structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Group monitors its capital using gearing ratio which is net debt to total equity. Net debt includes interest bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and bank balances.

The objective of the Group's capital management structure is to ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity within the Company
to carry out committed work programme requirements. The Group monitors the long term cash flow requirements of the business
in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure to meet that objective and to maintain flexibility.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharehoklers, return capital, issue new shares for cash,
repay debt, put in place new debt facilities or undertake other such restructuring activities as appropriate.

Particulars 31 MARCH 31 MARCH
2020 2019

Long term borrowings 2,749.20 2,540.97
Short term borrowings 367.63 154.21
Current maturities 301.54 276.69
Total borrowings 3,418.37 2,971.87
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 36.11 165.55
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 130.23 48.12
Net debts 3,252.03 2,758.20
Total equity 60.66 368.44
Gearing ratio (%) 53.61 7.49

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the company that are managed as capital.
(i} Debt is defined as long term borrowings and short term borrowings.

45.2 Categories of finandlal instruments
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

As at 31 March 2020

Particulars Amonrtised Cost FVTOCL FVTPL Total Carrying Total fair value
value

Financial assets

Investment - 0.7% - .75 0.75

Trade recejvable 51.77 - - 51.77 51.77

Cash and cash equivalents 36.11 - . 36.11 36.11

Bank balances other than cash and cash 130.23 - 130.23 130.23

equivalents )

Derivative Instrument - - 7.75 7.75 7.75

Loans 0.36 - - 0.36 0.36

Other financial assets 25.80 - - 25.80 25.20

Total 244.27 0.75 7.75 252.77 252.77

Financlal Llabilities

Long term borrowings {including accrued 3,151.87 - - 3,151.87 3,303.42

premium payable on redemption}

Short term borrowings 367.63 - - 367.63 367.63

Trade payables 429,98 - = 485,98 489.98

Lease liabilities 29.83 29.83 29.83

Derivative liabilities - - 0.20 0.20 0.20

Other financial liabilities 147.31 - - 147.31 147.31

Total 4,186.62 - 0.20 4,186.82 4,338.37




As at 31 March 2019

Particulars Amortised Cost FVTOC FVTPL Total Carrying Total fair value
value

Financial assets

Investment - 0.99 - 0.59 0.99

Trade receivable 32,98 - - 32.98 32.98

Cash and cash equivalents 165.55 - - 165.55 165.55

Bank halances other than cash and cash 4812 - - 48.12 4812

equivalents

Derivative assets - - -

Loans 9.72 . - 9.72 9.72

Other financial assets 28.03 - - 28.03 28.03

Total 284.40 0.99 - 285.39 285.39

Financial Liabilities

Long term borrowings (including accrued 2,853.03 - - 2,853.03 2,868.41

premium payable on redemption)

Short term borrowings 154.21 s - 154.21 154.21

Trade payables 400.08 - - 400.08 400.08

Other financial liabilities 78.40 - - 78.40 78.40

Total 3,485.72 - - 3,485.72 3,501.10

45,3 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of borrowings, trade and other payables, security
deposits, employee liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, loans given and cash
angd short-term deposits/ loan that derive directly from its operations. The company also holds FYTOC investments,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management of
these risks. The Campany's senior management is supported by the Finance department that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The finance function provides assurance to the Company’s
management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

45.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and FVTOCI investments.

The sensitivity analysis of the above mentioned risk in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019.
The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and labilities of foreign operations. The analysis for contingent liabilities is
provided in Note 41.
The follewing assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based
on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

A. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
debt cbligations with floating interest rates.

The foltowing table provides a breakup of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

Particulars 31 MARCH 31 MARCH
2020 2019

Fixed rate borrowings 456.62 496.62
Floating rate borrowings 3,022.88 2.475.25
Total borrowings 3,519.50 2,971.87
Total net borrowings 3,519.50 2,971.87
Add: Upfront fees 20.56 20.90
Total borrowings 3,540.06 2,992.77




Craixent Special Steels Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rupees crores, unless otherwise statad)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to change in interest rates, all other variables held constant :
Increase/decrease in  Effect on profit

basis points before tax

INR Crores

31 March 2020

INR +50 [17.60)

INR 50 17.60

31 March 2019

INR +50 (14.86}

INR -50 14.86

The assumed movement in basls points for the interest rate senshivity analysis Is based on the currently observable market environment.

H. FDI’E!(]H currency H‘S!\‘ rTJ{UJ'ﬂQB‘ﬂ?\‘:'ﬂf
Foreign currency risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates.

The Group's functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR]). The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencles. Consequently,
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. Volatility in exchange rates affects the Company’s revenue from expart markets and the cost of
imports, primarily in relation to raw materials. The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk under its trade portfolio,

A reasonably possible strengthening/weakening of the forelgn currencies {USD / Eura/ AED) against INR would have affected the measurement of
financial instruments denominated in foreign currenctes and affected equity and profit and loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes
that all ather variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

The Group hasis its assessment believes that there is no significant impact on the Group due to fluctuation in foreign currency due to COVID-19 as the
Group has appropriately hedged its exposure 10 currency sisk by way of forward contracts.

Exposure to currency risk
The carrying amounts of the Company’s menetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:

Currency Exposure as at 31 March 2020

Particulars 50 EURO AED INR Total
Financial assets
Non current investment - - - 0.75 Q.75
Trade Receivable 20.11 - - 31.66 51.%7
Cash and cash equivalents 0.63 - - 35.48 3611
Bank halances other than cash - - - 120.23 130.23
and ¢ash equivalents
Derivative Assets 795 - 775
Loans - - - 0.36 0.36
Qther financial assets - - - 25.80 25.80
Total financial assets 28.49 - - 224.28 252.77
Financial Liabilitles
Lang term borrowings - - - 3,151.87 3,151.87
{including accrued premium
payable on redemption)
Short term borrowings - . - 367.63 367.63
Lease liabilities - - - 29.83 29.83
Trade payables 103.52 - 386.46 486,92
Derivative liabilities 0.04 .16 - . .20
Qther finangial liabilities - 29,29 - 118.02 147.31
Total financial liabilties 103.56 29.45 - 4,053.81 4,186.82
Currency Exposure as at 31 March 2019

Particulars Uso EURO AED INR Total
Financial assets
Man current investment - - - 0.99 099
Trade Receivable 14.76 - - 18.22 3298
Cash and cash equivalents 0.0% - - 165.46 165,55
Bank balances other than cash 0.02 - - 48,10 4812
and cash equivalenis
Derivative Instrument - . - - -
Loans - 1.27 0.24 8.21 .72
QOther financial assets 1.38 - - 26,65 28.03
Total financial assets 16.25 1.27 0.24 267.63 285.39
Financial Liabilities
Long term borrowings 276.69 - - 2,576.34 2,853.03
{induding accrued premiurn
payable on redemption)
Short term borrowings - - 154,21 154.21
Trade payables 130.10 . . 269938 400.08
Other finandal Habilities 42.1% - - 36.21 78.40

Total financial liabilities 448.98 - - 3,036.74 3,485.72
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The following table details the Group's sensitivity to & 5% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currendes net of hedge
accounting impact. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reascnably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables
held constant. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5%
weakening of INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Increase Decrease
Particulars 31 MARCH 2020 31 MARCH 2019 31 MARCH 2020 331 MARCH 2019
Receivables
USD/INR 0.12 0.81 {0.12) 0.81)
EURC/INR 0.02 0.06 {0.02) {0.06)
AED/INR - 0.01 (0.01)
Payable
USD/INR [15.08} {22.45} 15.08 22.45
The farward exchange contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding are as under:
a) USD
s at Nature No of contracts Type USD equivalent  INR equivalent MTM
{ in million)
31 March 2020 Assets 10 Buy 25.21 150,04 .75
Liabilities & Sell 2.42 18.24 0.04
b} EURD
As at Nature No of contracts Type EURQD equivalent (€ INR equivalant MTM
in million)
31 March 2020 Liabilities 1 Buy 3.4 27.82 0.16
Unhedged curvency visk position
1} Amounts receivable in foreign currency
a) USD
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
USD equivalent INR equivalent  USD equivalent  INR eguivalent
{in million) {in million}
Trade receivables 0,30 1.87 213 14.76
Other recoverable - - 0.20 1.38
Cash & cash equivalents 0.10 0.63 0.003 .09
Tarm deposits - 4.001 .02
b) EUROQ
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
EURQ equivalent INR equivalent  EURO equivalent  INR equivalent
{in million} {in million})
Trade payables 0.001 0.43 0.16 1237
C) AED
As at 31 Mareh 2020 As at 31 March 2019
AED equivalent INR equivalent  AED equlvalent  INR equivalent
{in million} {in million})
Other recoverable - 0.13 0.24
11} Amounts payable in forgign currency
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
USD equivalent INR equivalent USD equivalent  INR equivalent
{in million} {in million)
Short term borrowings 40.00 301.54 40.00 276.69
Trade Payables . - 18.81 130.10
Other Payables - - 510 4219
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45,5 Credit risk management:

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under 3 financial instrument or customer cantract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including depasits with
bariks and financlal Institutions,

Credit risk from investments with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Treasury functlons in accordance with the management
policies. Investments of surplus funds are only made with approved counterparties who meet the appropriate rating and/or other criteria, and are
only made within approved limits. The managerment continually re-assess the Group's policy and update as required. The limits are set to minimise
the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty failure,

The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date,

For financial assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, investments, loans and other financial assets, the Group has assessed the
change in counterparty credit risk due 1o COVID-19 and believe that the same are fully recoverahle.

A Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each busi unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
ritk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit review and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

At the year end the Group does not have any significant concentrations of bad debt risk other than that disclosed in note 11.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an indlvidual basis for major clients, The calculation is based on historical data. The
maximurn exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets as at the balance sheet date. The Group
does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as Its customers are
lacated in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets. The outstanding irade receivables are regularly monitored and
appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue receivables.

B. Einancial instruments and cosh deposits

Credit risk from halances with hanks is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties.

45, 6, Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where
business conditions unaxpectedly deteriorate and require financing.

The Group's abjective s to maintain a balance between continulty of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts.

Maturity pattern of financial assets and llabilities:
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based an contractual undiscounted payments,

As at 31 March 2020

Particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Financial assets

Non current investment - . 0.75 075
Trade Receivable 5177 - . 51,77
Loaris 0.36 - - 0.36
Cash and cash equivalents 36.11 - - 36.11
Bank balances other than cash 130.23 - . 130.23
and cash equivalents

Derivative assets 7.75 . . 7.75
Other financial assets 1.45 24.31 0.04 25,80
Total financial assets 227.67 24.31 0.79 252.77
Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings 301.54 612.05 2,238.28 3,151.37
(including accrued premium

payable on redemption]

Short term borrowings 367.63 - * 3I67.63
Lease liabilities 0,98 302 25.83 29.83
Trade payables 489.98 - - 489,95
Derivative llablilities 0.20 - - Q.20
Other financial liabilities 147.31 - - 147.31
Interest payout liability on 219.44 848.68 544,90 1,593.03
borrowings

Interest payout liability on 0.10 Q.57 11.13 11.80
leases

Total financial liabilities 1,527.18 1,444.33 2,820.14 5.791.65
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As at 31 March 2019

Particulars < 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Tatal

Financial agsets

Mon current investment 0.99 0.99

Trade receivable 3298 32.98

Loans 9.72 9.72

Cash and cash equivalents 165.55 165,55

Bank balances other than cash 48.12 48,12

and cash equivalents

Other financizl assets 2218 0.68 5.17 28.03

Total financial assets 278,55 0.68 6.16 285.39

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings 276.69 281.30 2,295.04 2,853.03

{including accrued premium

payahle on redemption}

Short term boreowings 154.21 154.21

Trade payables 400.08 - 400.08

Other financial liabilities 78.40 - - 78.40

Imterest and premium payout 232.64 1,048.73 847.08 2,178.45

liability

Total financial liabilities 1,192.02 1,330.03 3,142.12 5,664.17

45.7. Level wise discl e of financial Instruments

Particulars 31 MARCH 2020 31 MARCH 2019 Level Valuation Technique

Quoted investments in equity Q.75 .99 1 Quated bid prices in an active

shares measured at FVTOC) market

Derivative assets 7.55 2 The far walue of forward
contracts is determined wusing

Derivative liabilities 0.20 2 forward exchange rate as at the
balance sheet date.

Long term borrowings 3,303.42 3,145.10 3 Discounted cash flow. Future

cash flows are discounted at a
rate that reflects market risk.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets and
other financial liabilities {other than those specifically disclosed) are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature,

Sensitivity analysis of Level 3:

Particulars Valuation Significant Change Sensitivity of the input to fair value
technique unobservable inputs
Non- current borrowings — Non|DCF Method Discounting rate|0.50% 0.50% Increase f [decrease) in the discount would
conwertible debentures 10.15% decrease / {increase) the fair value by Rs.8.42 crores /
{Rs.8.65 crares)
Reconciliation of Level lll fair value measurement:
Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2020 2019
Opening balance 186,30 -
Purchase / {Sale) {net} - 186.30
Gain { {loss} recognized in the statement of profit and loss -
Gain [ {loss) recognized in the Other comprehensive income - -
Closing balance 136.30 186.30
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